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Registered Name of the Company
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Tel: (86 379) 496 7038

Fax: (86 379) 496 7438
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Hong Kong
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Fimancial Highlights & 5

i

Year ended 31 December

BEF_A=1—HLEE

2001 2000
ZEEE ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR
TURNOVER B 1,863,824 1,997,314
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BWEEBEE (63,481) (119,887)
Finance costs HBEER (20,168) (19,627)
Share of profits less losses of : FE A5 i F AT PR R 1R
Jointly-controlled entity o IR 2 830 861
Associates N (14,788) (29,403)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BAEE (97,607) (168,056)
Tax i1 (16,786) (13,142)
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS RETVBREERRIEE (114,393) (181,198)
Minority interests D B A A (3,406) 24,145
NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES REEEHERE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS BEETFH (117,799 {157,053)

LOSS PER SHARE - Basic

BREE-EX

15.01 cents/73

20.01 cents/5>




Corporate Structure 2 & 72 (3

iBrilliance China:

i Machinery
%} Holdings
Limited
ERTBEHE
PERERLR

L

—

90.1%

First Tractor
Qingjiang
Tractor
Company
Limited

BRLE

40%
First Tractor
Ningbo C.S.I.

Tractor &
Automobile
Corp., Ltd.
—EBRPEERN
HEEERAR

51% 60%

1

First Tractor
Shenyang
Tractor
Company
Limited
— ¥5 BB HE
BERAA

HITERY

i

51% |

|
!

Yituo (Luoyang) Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd.
—# (ER) TREHMBERL T

49%

51%

Yituo (Luoyang) Building 48%

Machinery Co., Ltd.
— (BB ) BERBERLT

59%

Zhenjiang Huachen Huatong Road

Machinery Company Limited
EIEEEBRRESEMERAR

58%

Zhenjiang Huatong Aran
Machinery Company Limited
HIZBFEHBHUEERAE

39.6% 70% 93.4%
Shanghai z(r;\:::.z; Yituo (Luoyang)
Qiangnong Biological Harvester
(Group) Industrial C?” Lid. i
Co_m!:any Co., Ltd. — & ( BE ) W iE
‘ Limited EMmm ey T HBHERAR
iﬁﬂﬁ%(%?)i ERAT [ ,
BHRERL2® | L o
99% 91.7%
Luoyang f L.uoyang
Changlun Changhong
Agricuitural High
Machinery Yi 8.3% Technglogy
| 070 Trading
Company Company
Limited | Limited
ABERER | BEEHERIN
BBEERALE | HERAE
Yituo (Zhenjiang) 65%

Harvester Co., Lid.
—H (1) HEEHERAR
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EAE z3R
Dong Yong An  Chairman

AR

ARNREARBAFEFERSURFIRE FTTFERE - LRk
MR~ SXRFALEIRIR IO RERENERE -

To Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors’), I am pleased to present the
annual report of First Tractor Company Limited (“First Tractor” or the
“Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2001. I would also like to take this
opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to the shareholders of the Company.
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Business Review

During the reporting period, the
Directors and the management of First
Tractor Company Limited (the
“Company”) underwent a significant
restructuring to increase its strategic and
management capabilities. Facing with
severe operating condition, the
management of the Company has
speeded up the adjustment of product
mix, enhanced its expansion in business,
strengthened quality and target cost
management, lowered the operating cost
of funds and implemented internal
corporate reforms. By appointing an
international consulting firm A.T.
Kearney Co. Ltd. as its management
consultant, the Company has undergone
a comprehensive diagnostic review and
managed to adopt effective combined
measures to halt the further decline of
profitability.

Net loss of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) in 2001
narrowed by 25% as it benefited from
(1) a relatively large increase in the sale
of its new products, of which, sales of
1002/1202 crawler tractor series rose by
314 units over the same period of last
year, representing an increase of 36.68%;
an additional 120 large-wheeled tractors
were sold over the same period of last
year, representing an increase of 42.3%;
and 1,592 more 30/40 medium-wheeled
tractors were sold over the same period
of last year, representing an increase of
758.10%; (2) an increase in the
construction machinery business such as
bulldozers; (3) a fall in the unit cost of
tractors over the same period of last year;,
(4) a relatively large increase in income
from new businesses.

During the reporting period, the
Company still have not turned around
from loss position.

Chairman’s Statement BHHREHREH

(1) Agricultural machinery business:
(1) slowdown in income growth of
farmers meant that farmers were less
able and willing to make purchases; (2)
the market lacked a new hot product and
the launch of new products could not
keep up with the speedy changes in
market demand; (3) new entrants into
the market have intensified competition.
The sliding trend in sales of national
tractor market has not improved
basically. Sales have been falling for
three consecutive years, with the sales
of large-medium tractors decreased by
4.9% from last year, sales of small four-
wheeled crawler tractors decreased
31.2% from last year, and combined
harvesters dropped by 54% from last
year. During the reporting period, the
Company's sales of large-medium
wheeled tractors amounted to 6,109
units, representing a decrease of 36%
over the same period of last year, of
which sales of large crawler tractors was
3,903 units, representing a decrease of
41.7% over the same period of last year,
whilst sales of small-wheeled tractors
amounted to 53,428 units, representing
a decrease of 14% over the same period
of the last year.

(2) Construction machinery business
Construction machinery products such
as the rolling machinery, earthwork
machinery and road machinery of
Brilliance China Machinery Holdings
Limited (“BCM”) benefited from an
increase in basic infrastructure and as a
result, recorded a growth in profit but
still cannot cover the loss of the Group.
During the report period, the Group sold
1,203 road rollers, representing a
decrease of 4.5% over the same period
of last year (the industry fell 10%); 214
bulldozers, representing an increase of
28.9% over the same period of last year;
164 pavers, representing an increase of
20% over the period of last year, and 48
mixers, representing an increase of 33%
over the same period of last year.

HEEE

REMAR  EEEBREEREAT(L
BB ANE NEFGNEREETTE
RIHE - ERFRAENEEKFREIT 2
Tt ALFIEEE R RENKELS
MRERAGEHEAR  MAMLEE K
BICHERAERAEH  BEERIE
Bl HEERERREE > BREERGE
AEEAFAMECEEZALAHART
ETEENZEHRER  RIFESER &
HIRE TR WS T HENRR

ZEZ-ERLARMBAE(TAREH,)
BERLYZE2%  SER(DHELBE
IR A » Hoh1002/12020% 6 84 & 5] Ho 1
M3145 - B E36.68% » AT HE
fEEERELENNE  REEHME
42.3% > 3074000 B 85 SR LA 85 & B LL
M59E - EHIEETSS. 0% (2)H 8
FIHEERERNEE Q) ENEBES
BERINARLLSEERTE  (OREBLE
WARLEHEAME -

REMA - HMAEREGERA -

1 BERREE (OBRRRAMEEE
g BERREEREIEEERE
(OMBRZEFRBARABESRL  FE
o B B R B T B B R 9 o L AR
& OHBRENMA > BFNE - 2
BIEN BHENHE TEHEEEEHER
ARyl SEE=ETE  AhRHEL
BB R T 54.9% o /N BR T R B
R TH31.2%  BEKEBHRERFLLT
[54% - SR - AREFHEKRDEE
fUB6,109%6 » FLTR36%  HPHEEX
B Fg 4 4 17 43,9035 » L T HE41.7% 5
s R T HE 153,428 0 RILL T
14% ¢

2LIRBRER ERPEBHERER
NE(TEREW ZERBENRER -
THEERN  REGRHS TEREE
Mo BRTEBELNNE > 2R AN
o BNREBHEAEECEE - KEEH
WMEHIA > HEBRE203E 0 ALTH
45%ITETREI0%) & HEHE L2145
Bl EF28.9% ; $5E #1645 > FLL
EF20%: HEBHEBRE  HEEA
33% o



Chairman’s Statement BB RH LS

Reszerch znc developmaent

In 2001, the Company has successfully
raised the quality of its products,
expanded its sales and increased its
market share. At the same time, the
Company has also focused on the
changing needs of its customers and
restructured its product mix positively,
and has tried to cater for customers'
needs through achievements in research
and development of new products.

Agricultural machinery products (1)
With the technical upgrades to its 30/40
medium-wheeled tractor line, the
production capacity has now reached 5,000
units. Sales for the full year amounted to
1,802 units, a rise of 758% over the period.
This was the only product that recorded
an increase in the national tractor market;
(2) The production capacity of the
Dongfanghong-1002-1 crawler tractor
(with YT4130 engine) has now reached
500 units per annum and the
Dongfanghong-902 crawler tractor was
well received forits energy-saving ability.
(3) Proactive response to market changes
based on market information, a "New
Century, New Hope" product was
introduced in small-wheel tractor product
line, along with the Dongfanghong-SD200
floating half-axle transportation model
"Shandiwang" tractors. Both products
were welcomed by customers. (4) In
September 2001, 10 sample units of large-
wheeled tractor, Dongfanghong X800/804
were launched. In order to complement
successfully with domestic agricultural
machinery, a 720 rpm engine has already
been produced.

Construction machinery products (1)
With the adjustment to the product mix
of rolling machinery, new road roller
products were introduced: the YZ16C,
YZ18C and YZI18F models; (2) The
development for paving machinery
centred on the idea of "Innovation and
Perseverence", which led to the in-house
development of WLTLY9500 multi-
functional pavers and the introduction
of HTH8500 four-crawler cement
pavers; (3) In-house production of new
mixer products: ABH1500, MODU30,
MODU45 and the development of
LIBY9500, LIB1500, and other mixing
machinery. The development of these
new products has enhanced the
Company’s edge in market
competition.

The Company will continue to insist on
its product development strategy: to
respond swiftly to the market, develop
and manufacture products which are
marketable and to the satisfaction of
customers.

Business development
strategy

In 2002, the State will continue to widen
its “withdrawals and returns”
reforestation work and speed up the
adjustment and improvement work in the
agricultural sector. This will definitely
affect the sales of its large-wheeled
crawler tractors. At the same time, the
State will implement such measures as
expanding the channels for farmers to
increase their incomes, and increasing
investment in agricultural industry. To

CEE-FALAARERGREGERE
B FARER - AR RN - 5t
FHAPFERAEML MR E S - i
BFMBERAPRR -

EEERER(D30M40P BN EHEE
EEMYCE - B RS0005 M4 ERE
ZEHEIS0E » FILEETS% - AT
BE-F2EBNENSIE-ZHER
BWER (DB GAL-1002- 187 11
(R YT4130% B ) 5008 /£ £ ERENT
RIGH » B7H1-9028 JE # DL 22 A i
HREETIRRPNEZES  QRED
BEE  EHEERGEL PR
PIHEH T > B R ERFIE
FAL-SD200R Z LB EH T L E
ZETHEMEY - ¢ (ORE&HAHET
BHEAAIXS00/804%  —_EE—FNHE
EIGRBIRNTS BT EEERRE
BERIEE  CREE208/58 0%
HFT G

IBRRER(DEERMERFEERL
B BERHERYZI6CH « YZISCH
YZISFRIERRR#E ¢ () BihiemE R T4
oo KRB ONWHZRER BTHSE
WLTLY9500%) % ThEc Stk ~ SRS T
HTHSS00%! 4 75 K R #E G 88 © () #EAD
{5 M B 1T IF B 59 28 9 2 5 ABHI1S00E! -
MODU30 + MODU45%! fI 5] 3 B 2
LIBY9500%! ~ LIB1SOOR! #3014 - 58
LHERNFEEAFEER LB N2
EGNRFRETRE -

REEET S - ARG EEHE - BF
REWEMERLAFABRBEHNERMER
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increase farmers' incomes and to reduce
their liabilities are the prime mission for
the State to improve the overall
economic environment. This will present
an opportunity for the Company to raise
the sales of its large, medium and small-
wheeled tractors. In 2002, the State will
continue to implement the grand
development strategy in Western region
and to facilitate the prime construction
projects like railway from Qinghai to
Tibet, natural gas from West to East, and
electricity from West to East, etc and
also road construction projects. These
will lead to a continuous growth in the
demand for construction machinery,
which means that there will be a wide
opening in the market for products of
the Group such as: bulldozers, rollers,
mixers, pavers and maintenance
machinery.

With China becoming a member of the
World Trade Organisation (WTO),
China's businesses must now operate in
an environment where "competition has
no walls, markets have no boundaries".
Entering into WTO brings about
enormous effects to China's agricultural
industry, which indirectly affects the
operation and development of China's
agricultural enterprises. Meanwhile, it
has created opportunities and improved
conditions for the Group's tractor and
construction machinery products to enter
into international markets. As such, the
Company's operation and development
will face enormous challenges in 2002
brought about by domestic and overseas
changes, but these challenges will also
create potential market opportunities for
the Company. New entrants to the
market has intensified competition. Our
strategies are as follows:

1) Strengthening and expanding the
agricultural and construction
machinery businesses

2)

3)

4)

Chatrman’s Statement ZEBEHR S E

Agricultural machinery
business

In response to the needs of
customers and the trend of
competition, the Company will
enhance the 25HP-90HP products
within the I5SHP-120HP ranged
market, but with an eye still on
those products of less than 25HP
and those of more than 90HP. At
the same time, the Company will
put its effort in exploring market
for such agricultural products as
tractors’ accessories. We aim not
only to supply the main machinery
for customers, but also products
which can complement with
agricultural machinery. This will
create breakthrough for the
agricultural industry.

Construction machinery
business

The Company will grasp the
opportunities provided by the State's
improvement in infrastructure and
its implementation of grand
development strategy of the western
region by speeding up the
development of the whole range of
its construction machinery products
such as rolling machinery, earthwork
machinery, paving machinery,
mixing machinery and maintenance
machinery.

Enlarging business opportunities
by specialisation in the Company's
specialised component plants.

Restructuring and reorganisation
of the business of its subsidiaries
and increasing the return of
investment made by the Company.

Endeavouring to international
cooperation, introducing new
advanced products, advanced
technology, advanced
management and experience from
overseas.
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Chatrman’s Statement & F R H &3

Improving cperations and
raising efficiency

The Company is raising efficiency through
emphasising management innovation,
absorbing new management ideas and
experiences, and by improvement in
operations and efficiency. The
management consultants A.T. Kearney
Co., Ltd. has conducted a comprehensive
diagnostic review on the Company and
proposals for improvement include: (1) To
restructure and reorganise product
development flow, data base on accounts
receivables, product pricing, strategic
procurement work flow; to identify the
personnel qualification and job
requirements for each segment of business
and management flow; (2) To restructure
the sales team so as to adapt to market
changes; to avoid waste of resources and
internal competition; to avoid lack of
overall planning and management in
product sales; to strengthen product sales,
sales management and after-sales services,
etc. and to keep abreast with the market so
that highly effective operating practices
can be achieved; (3) to establish effective
system of personnel management and to
enhance the initiatives of sales personnel.
By reforming the sales system, substantial
breakthroughs were expected in the market
expansion of the Company.

The Directors believe that through
adjustment in product mix,
rationalization of human resources and
implementation of management strategy,

the Company can manage to overcome
difficulties in adverse operating
environment and minimize the external
adverse impact on the Company, and to
be able to uphold the weakening
economics of scales so as to put the
operations of the Company into benign
cycle and thereby providing more
satisfactory investment return for
shareholders.

By order of the Board of Directors
Dong Yong An
Chairman

Luoyang, the PRC
26 April 2002
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Management Discussion & Analysis & % /&

Analysis of Results

As at 31 December 2001, the total turnover of the Group
amounted to RMB1,863,824,000, representing a decrease of
6.68% over the same period last year. The consolidated loss
after taxation and minority interests amounted to
RMB117,799,000, representing a 25% decrease over the
previous year. The loss per share amounted to RMB15.01 cents.

Turnover of the Group fell slightly compared to last year as
income from both tractors and construction machinery fell
13.16% and 26.56% respectively as compared with the same
period last year. However, turnover of road machinery
operation, the other business segment of the Group, increase
10.13% from last year. This was resulting from achievements
in adjusting the business structure of the Group.

In 2001, there was no real improvement in the sliding trend of
sales volume of China's tractor industry. The main reason for
a decrease in sales income of the Company's tractors operation
was a relatively large fall (approximately 55%) in sales for its
main product 70/80 crawler tractors. Sales of the Company's
small-wheeled tractors also fell (approximately 14%). In face
of severe external market conditions, the management of the
Company has put much efforts on management strategies and
further reinforced its adjustment to the product mix and
business structure. In this way, the Company has met the market
demands on its products. In 2001, sales of 1002/1202 crawler
tractors and 30/40 medium-wheeled tractors, both new models
in replace of old product, rose 36.68% and 758.10% in 2001
respectively as compared with the same period last year.
Although still in preliminary stage, the adjustment to the
product mix has achieved initial success and set a basis for
new source of profit growth.

The management has included external sources of operating
income into 1ts profit target accessment and formulated relevant
enhancement policies, which were to put various production
units into market for competition and also to seek new source
of economic growth. In 2001, the Company's income and
realised gross profit for its new businesses rose 2.29 times and
2.28 times respectively compared with the same period last
year, creating the best results ever since the establishment of
the Company. As such, the creation of new businesses has led
to a reduction in loss.
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Cost Analysis

In respect of cost control, the management still implement
“Fully Comprehensive, Multi-dimensional and Stringent
Control on Water, Electricity, Heat and Gas” as the framework
of target cost management. The comprehensive cost control
system was also established through dimensions on
“Reinforcement in Management, Emphasis on Technology and
Employment of Capital”, and there were signs of cost and
expenses reduction. In 2001, amidst fall of income, the
Company has began to implement such measures as value
engineering, strategic procurement, target cost management
system, security risk management system and resulted in a
decrease of variable cost and controllable expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2001, the administrative
expenses of the Company amounted to RMB134,514,000, a
rise of 7.76% from the same period last year. The main reason
for increase in administrative expenses was consultancy fees
paid to management consultants in 2001. Apart from this, all
other expenses under administrative expenses decreased from
the same period last year. Based on the principle of “Top-
down from management and Bottom-up from unit cost”, the
Company managed to raise efficiency of procurement funds
utilization by implementing a public tender for all office
equipments and comparative pricing in procurement.

Liquidity and Financial Analysis

As at 31 December 2001, the cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB913,354,000 which had decreased by
RMBS53,931,000, representing a decline of 5.6% compared with
2000. As at 31 December 2001, the Group's short term bank
loans amounted to RMB257,060,000, an increase of
RMB63,021,000 compared to 2000. The Group had no long
term bank loans. As at 31 December 2001, the gearing ratio
was 31.74% (total liabilities/total assets x 100%), which showed
a slight decrease when compared to that of 32.39% of last
year.

As at 31 December 2001, net accounts receivable of the Group
amounted to RMB354,333,000, decreased by RMB129,885,000,
represently a decline of 26.8% compared with 2000. The main
reason for the fall in the Group's accounts receivable was that the
Company put the management of accounts receivable and
inventory as a priority item throughout the year and to this end,
the Company has set up a supervisory team specialize in clearing
up inventory and bad debts, and to set clearing guidelines to
relevant departments such that the workload was spread over to
personnel responsible. As a result, the Company effectively
reduced the attributable cost of funds and enabled the Company's
assets to remain in the most favourable status.
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Investments

For the year ended 31 December 2001, several subsidiaries owned
by the Company have mixed performance in operations, among
which road machinery and building machinery businesses still
achieved an uprise in growth, ‘with RMB 14,095,000 and
RMB4,739,000 of profit recorded respectively, representing an
increase of 19.5% and 11.5% respectively as compared with the
same period last year. However, performance of First Tractor
Qingjiang Tractor Company Limited, First Tractor Shenyang
Tractor Company Limited and Yituo (Luoyang) Harvester Co.,
Ltd. was unsatisfactory with a loss in 2001.

Analysis of Assels and Financial Position of the

Group

Financial Statistics

HEER

BE_EZ-F+_A=+—Hit ALAREENEEWBLT
WERNRENE - HPRESRTREERMARIE REFN
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B 5 FE R

[tems Basis of calculation As at 31 December 2001 As at 31 December 2000

-2 RoZTEE

i A +ZF=+—H I

Gearing ratio Total Habilities/total assets x 100% 31.74% 32.39%
HEARE BRMBEEEER x 100%

Current ratio Current assets/current liabilities 2.31 233

mEh L% MEEEMBAR

Quick ratio Current assets - inventories/current liabilities 1.69 1.72
EE R (RBEE-FE)MBEE

Debt equity ratio Total liabilities/shareholders’ equity x 100% 46.49% 47.92%
L= BEBE/MRER x 1009

Analysis of Equity and Reserves P HE B (38 Bt 43 #7

As at As at Changes in amount

31 December 2001 31 December 2000 increase/ (decrease)

R_BE-%F RZBEEE 2HeH

tZA=+—H TZHZ+—H s S)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARBFT AR¥TFT ARETT

Share capital RA 785,000 785,000 —

Share premium e {7 % 1 1,378,840 1,378,840 —

Statutory common reserve RERES 58,578 58,169 409

Statutory public welfare fund BEARE 58,578 58,169 409

Reserve fund HEEe 834 564 270

Enterprise expansion fund TEBREES 590 320 270

Capital reserve RN - - -

Accumulated losses ZHER 174,088 54,931 119,157
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Plan ‘or Sigrificant Investment arnd Acquisition
of Capital Assets of the Group In Future

The Group will increase its investment in BCM, one of its
subsidiaries, by USD19,500,000 in 2002.

Currency Exchange Risk

Normal operating activities of the Group were mainly carried
out in the PRC and most of the capital income and expenditures
were made in Renminbi while few of them were made in Hong
Kong dollars, The debt in foreign currency is used for the
payment of overseas intermediary fees and dividends to holders
of H Shares. Cash balances of the Group were usually placed
in the financial institutions in the form of short-term time
deposits. The banking facilities of the Group were granted in
Renminbi which could be repaid out of the income received in
Renminbi.

For the year ended 31 December 2001 the Company has not
pledged any of its foreign currency deposits.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2001, certain of the Group’s buildings and
machinery with a carrying value of approximately
RMB34,881,000 were pledged to banks to secure certain short
term bank loans granted to the Group.

Apart from this, certain deposits amounting to approximately
RMB 23,302,000 were pledged to banks to secure general
banking facilities granted by banks to the Group.

BRI
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Number of Steff and Composition

As at 31 December 2001, there was a total of approximately
15,423 staff members, of which 9,292 were production officers,
579 were engineering technicians, 210 were financial officers
and 1,504 were administrative personnel.

In 2001, the Company organised 518 training courses and a
total number of 29,580 staff members joined the training which
has improved their working quality.

Contingent Liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group and the

Company as at 31 December 2001 are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

17

BREETIAUREIRIER
BEZZZ-S+-A=Z+—-HL R2AXFRIAER

15423A » A EAERI20VA » TREMABSOA » B
AEE20A  EEABBLSKA -

ALREZZZ-FHBTSI8EBEINE - £5F29580AK 21
THI > R#ETAFBIHBERE -

FERRALERZEZ-F+ZA=+-HZRAARKERE
R B 5 SR R T RE 36




Profile of Directors, Company Secretary & Supervisors H B ~ AR BEREEH

Execulive Direclor

Mr. Deng Yong An, aged 45, joined the
China First Tractor Group in 1982, and
had been the Workshop Director, Section
Chief, Deputy Factory Manager, Factory
Manager, Deputy Chief Engineer,
Executive Deputy General Manager and
General Manager. He had also been the
Vice-Chairman and General Manager of
the Company. He is currently the
Chairman of China First Tractor Group
Company Limited and the Company. Mr.
Dong is familiar with dynamic
engineering and machinery design and
is experienced in corporate management
and production operation. He graduated
from Xian Jiaotong University with
bachelor degree in 1982 and holds the
title of Senior Engineer.

Mr. Liu Ba Gong, aged 47, joined the
China First Tractor Group in 1975. Mr.
Liu had been the Researcher, Supervisor
and Vice-General Manager of China
First Tractor Group. He is currently the
Vice Chairman and General Manager of
China First Tractor Group Company
Limited. Mr. Liu has rich experience in
personnel, human resources labour
management and staff training. Mr. Liu
graduated from Zheng Zhou University
in 1985 and studied the postgraduate
course in Henan Province Party College
and majored in economic management,

Mr. Liu Wen Ying, aged 53, joined
China First Tractor Group in 1975 and
had been the Deputy Section Chief,
Section Chief, Assistant to Department
Head, Head of Accounting Division and
Deputy Chief Economist. He is currently
the Vice-Chairman and Deputy General
Manager of China First Tractor Group
Company Limited. Mr. Liu has engaged

in financial and economic management
and has extensive experience in
corporate financial operations and
organization management. Mr. Liu
graduated from Henan Administrative
College with postgraduate qualification
in economic management. Mr, Liu holds
the title of Senior Accountant.

Mr. Shac Hai Chen, aged 47, joined
the China First Tractor Group in 1977
and had been the Technician, Section
Chief, Deputy Factory Manager and
Factory Manager of China First Tractor
Group. Mr. Shao had also been the
Assistant to the General Manager and
Vice-General Manager of the Company.
Mr. Shao is currently the General
Manager of the Company. Mr. Shao is
experienced in technology, production
and corporate management. Mr. Shao
graduated form Luoyang Institute of
Technology & Science in 1982 with
bachelor degree and holds the title of

Senior Engineer.

Mr. Cui Qi Hong, aged 57, joined China
First Tractor Group in 1967 and had been
the Section Chief, Deputy Factory
of Sub-Plant,
Department Head, Department Head,

Manager Deputy
Chief Co-ordinator and Assistant to
General Manager. Mr. Cui also had been
the Deputy General Manager and
General Manager of the Company. He
is currently the Deputy General Manager
of China First Tractor Group Company
Limited. Mr. Cui has extensive
experience in technology, management,
production and operations of the
Company. Mr. Cui graduated from
Luoyang Industrial College in 1967 and
holds the title of Senior Engineer.
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Mr. Li Teng Jiao, aged 46, was
previously the Deputy Head of Product
Development Department of Luoyang
Tractor Research Institute. He joined
China First Tractor Group in 1995 and
had been the Deputy Director of
Technology Centre and Deputy Chief
Engineer of the Company. He is the
Deputy General Manager of China First
Tractor Group Company Limited. Mr.
Li has extensive experience in machinery
design and technology management. He
graduated from Jilin Industrial
University with a bachelor degree in
1982. He holds the title of Senior

Engineer.

Mr. Zhang Jing, aged 46, joined China
First Tractor Group in 1975. He was the
Deputy Head of Collective Economic
Management Office of China First
Tractor Group in 1994. He is currently
the Assistant to General Manager and
Financial Controller of First Tractor
Company Limited. Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in corporate
financial management, economic and
capital operations. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Henan Television Broadcast
University in 1985 and holds the title of

Senior Accountant.

Mr. Cao Chun Guo, aged 47, joined
China First Tractor Group in 1977 and
had been the Deputy Section Chief,
Section Chief and Assistant to Head of
Sub-Plant. He had been General Manger
of Yituo (Luoyang) Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd. and Yituo
(Luoyang) Building Machinery Co.,
Ltd.. Mr. Cao has extensive experience
in production, operations and corporate
management. He graduated from Central

Party College and majored in economic

management.

Mr. Liuo Shuang Cheng, aged 46, joined
China First Tractor Group in 1975 and
had been the Committee Member and
Workshop Director of China First
Tractor Group. He had also been the
Assistant to the Factory Manager,
Deputy Factory Manager and Factory
Manger of the forging plant. He is
currently the Factory Manager of the
Company's No.l iron casting factory.
Mr. Liu graduated from Central Party
College and majored in economic

management.
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Independent Non-Execulive
Rireclors

Mr. Lu Zhong Min, aged 70, a member
of Audit Committee of the Company.
He was the Chairman of the board of
directors of China First Tractor Group
(previously First Tractor Manufacturing)
from 1992 to 1995. He is the Chairman
of China Association of Agricultural
Machinery Manufacturers and a
consultant of the Regional Network of
Agricultural Machinery to the United
Nations. He is also a professor of Jilin
University of Technology and Jiangsu
Science and Technology University. Mr.
Lu graduated from Harrkov Institute of
Technology with bachelor degree in
1959. He holds the title of Senior
Engineer.

Mr. Tao Xiang, aged 69, joined Chinese
People’s University in 1962 and has 30
years of experience in teaching and
research in finance. He is now a
professor and tutor for doctoral
postgraduates of the Treasury and
Finance Department of Chinese People’s
University. Mr. Tao has extensive
experience in accounting management
and international finance. Mr. Tao is the
Vice-Chairman of the PRC International
Economic Relations Association, a
member of the Council of International
Finance Association in the PRC, an

academic committee member of the
International Development Research
Institute under the State Council’s
Development Research Centre, a guest
professor of the Postgraduates
Department of People’s Bank of China
(Head Office), a guest professor of the
International Business College of
Nanjiang University. Mr. Tao graduated
from the Treasury and Finance
Department of Chinese People’s
University with bachelor degree in
finance in 1959 and obtained master
degree of economics from the same
university in 1962.

Mr. Chan Sau Shan, Gary, aged 48, a
member of Audit Committee of the
Company. He was a Director and Head
of the Corporate Finance Department of
China Development Finance Company
(Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bank of China. He is an
Executive Officer of International
Finance Company Limited of Bank of
China. He is in charge of corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions. Mr.
Chan has 22 years of experience in
banking and corporate finance. Mr. Chan
received master degree in business
administration from the University of
Windsor, Ontario, bachelor degree in arts
from the University of Western Ontario
and attended the Financial Management
Program of Stanford University, USA.
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Mr. Chen Zhi, aged 46, joined China
Agriculture Mechanisation Research
Institute in 1982. He had been the Deputy
Head of Intelligence Department, Head
and Deputy Head of Finance
Management Department, Head of the
China Agriculture Mechanisation
Research Institute and General Manager
of It REH T /AT, He is currenlty
the Head of the China Agriculture
Mechanisation Research Institute. Mr.
Chen has considerable experience in
design and manufacture of agricultural
machinery, science research and
financial and scientific management. Mr.
Chen graduated from Jilin Industrial
University in 1982 with bachelor degree.
He studied agricultural machinery at
Milan University, Italy in 1991. He also
obtained master degree of science
management and engineering in June
2000. Mr. Chen holds the title of Senior
Engineer with professor grade.

Mr. Hon Fong Ming, aged 35, a
member of Audit Committee of the
Company. He is currently the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of 38 —3E
ERERBITERFRAT, Executive
Director of Dragoncom (Asia) Asset
Management Limited. Mr. Han has

nearly 10-year experience in capital
madrket management and corporate
merger financing. In particular, he is
experienced in assisting Chinese state-
owned enterprises to be listed overseas
and their cross-country operations. Mr.
Hon is a non-executive director of the
TCL International Holdings Limited and
Chairman of Luoyang Glass Financial
Company Limited.

Company Secretary

Mr. Jiang Guo Liang, aged 43, joined
the China First Tractor Group in 1994,
He has been appointed the Deputy Head
and Head of the Technology Department
of the China First Tractor Group. Mr.
Jiang has considerable experience in
technology management and the tractor
industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from Jilin
Industrial University in 1982 with a
bachelor degree. He also obtained a
certificate in “Strategic Management in
Manufacturing” from the University of
Warwick in 1994 and obtained master
degree in engineering from the Jiangsu
University in 2001. He holds the title of

Senior Engineer.
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Supervisory Commitiee

Mr. Liu A Nan, aged 55, joined the
China First Tractor Groﬁp in 1966. He
was the Deputy Section Chief, Section
Chief, Deputy Department Head, Deputy
Chief Accountant and Chief Accountant
of the China First Tractor Group. He has
considerable experience in finance and
accounting. He graduated from United
Correspondence University of Economic
Management in 1986 majored in
enterprise management in 1986 and
holds the title of Senior Accountant.

Ms. Wang Al Ying, aged 50, joined
China First Tactor Group in 1971 and
was Vice-chairman of Labour Union of
the China First Tractor Group in 1990.
She was the Chairman of the Labour
Union of First Tractor Company Limited
in 1999. Madam Wang has extensive
experience in propaganda, education and
work of the labour union. She graduated
from Central Party Correspondence
College in 1996, majored in economic
management and holds the title of Senior
Political Work Engineer.

Mr. Zhao Zhong Hai, aged 46, joined
the China First Tractor Group in 1980,
In 1995, he was the Head of the
Supervision Department. Mr. Zhao has

experience in administrative control.

Mr. Xu Wei Lin, aged 40, joined China
First Tractor Group in 1982. He has been
the Deputy Head and the Head of
Auditing Department since 1998. He has
experience in production and operation
management and auditing of corporate
finance. Mr. Xu graduated from Jiangsu
Polytechnic University, majored in
industrial management and holds the title
of Economist.

Mr. Shao Jiang Xin, aged 48, joined
China First Tractor Group in 1973. He
had been the technician, Deputy
Supervisor, Deputy Section Chief,
Supervisor, Assistant to Factory
Manager, Deputy Factory Manager and
Factory Manager. Mr. Shao is currently
the Chairman of the Labour Union and
Deputy Manger of the Company's No.2
fabricating factory. Mr. Liu graduated
from the postgraduate course of Henan
Province Party College, majored in
economic management, and holds the

title of Engineer.
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The directors herein present their report and the audited

financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2001.

=T

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company comprise the
production and sale of agricultural tractors. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 16 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal

activities during the year.
Segment Information

An analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to
results by principal activity and geographical area for the
year ended 31 December 2001 is set out in note 4 to the
financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2001
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
46 to 108.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year 2001.
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Financia! Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements, is set
out below. The amounts for 1997, 1998 and 1999 have
been adjusted for the effects of the retrospective changes
in accounting policy for dividend declared after the
respective balance sheet dates.

The financial summary has been prepared in accordance
with the Hong Kong accounting standards.

Consolidated results

AEERA OIS EERAERABBE(RACHEZ
REVHBRZBIIWT - —ANEFE > —LANER
—“NANEEEZHECFHHRE  URBRREEEER
HERBEZEHERCEHNEREZE -

MR LR B ERRH -

Year ended 31 December
BET-_A=+—-HLFE

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
ZRE-F ZEIEF —NAAKIE —AWAE —HEE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARSTT AR®FrT ARBTT AREBTT AR¥Tx
Turnover HER 1,863,824 1,997,314 2,865,137 2,703,563 3,087,345
Profit/(loss) before tax B EIEF (EE) (97.607) (168,056) 138,009 227,444 428,777
Tax M (16,786) (13,142) (44,294) (73,972) (141,014)
Profit/(loss) before RV ERH
minority interests AR/ (HE) (114,393) (181,198) 93,713 151472 287,763
Minority interests YRR (3,406) 24,145 (13,594) (19,033) (3,916)
Net profit/(loss) from MR ELHE
ordinary activities FHRA
attributable to (B 18)IFH
shareholders (117,799) (157,053) 80.121 132,439 283,847
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4.  Financial Summary {(continued)

Consolidated assets and liabilities

Report of the Directors BB FH 5 B

4. WEBEB(E)

GEEEREE
As at 31 December
Bt+ZA=+—-4
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

“EE-F ZZZEE JUVWE -UAE —ReE
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTL AREBTT ARETIT AREFTT ARETI

Total assets HEE 3,088,579 3,292,787 3,657,209 3,540,244 3,160,491
Total liabilities mEE (914200)  (1,000.726)  (1,022,644) (959,653) (731,974)
Minority interests DR R (66,047) (65,930) (195,409) (180,831) (67,126)
Total &t 2,108,332 2,226,131 2,439,156 2,399,760 2,361,391

5. Fixed Asseis 5. CEE
Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Company ARNERAEERAFERNEEEECEHFERNUH
and the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the e IR
financial statements.

8. Share Capital 8. BR#E

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

During the year of 2001, the Company did not issue any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights.
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10.

11.

Il

Pre-emptlive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to its existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemptlion of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 33 to the

financial statements.
Distributable Reserves

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at
31 December 2001 are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2001, the five largest
customers and suppliers respectively accounted for less
than 30% of the total sales and purchases of the Group.
Accordingly, information for the major customers and
suppliers needed not be further disclosed.
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12.

Directors and Supervisors

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the

year were as follows:

Executive directors:

. Fang Gang

. Chen Li Wei

. Dong Yong An

. Lin Wen Ying

. Cui Qi Hong

. Li Teng Jiao

. Zhang Jing

. Wang Wen Ding (resigned on 24 August 2001)
", Cao Chun Guo

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lu Zhong Min

Mr. Tao Xiang

Mr. Chan Sau Shan, Gary

Mr. Chen Zhi

Mr. Hon Fong Ming

Supervisors:

Mr. Liu A Nan

Mr. Zhao Zhong Hai
Mr. Xu Wei Lin

Ms. Wang Ai Ying
Mr. Yang You Liang

On 24 August 2001, the Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company approved the resignation of Mr. Wang
Wen Ding as executive director of the Company.

As Mr. Yang You Liang resigned the duties of supervisor
of staff representative, the Company elected Mr. Shao
Jian Xin as supervisor of staff representative on 18
February 2002 in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association. The appointment was effective on 18
February 2002.
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12.

13.

14,

Direclors and Supervigsors (continued)

On 8 April 2002, the Extraordinary General Meeting was
held by the Company to approve the resignation of Mr.
Fang Gang and Mr. Chen Li Wei as executive directors
of the Company, and to approve the appointment of Mr.
Liu Da Gong, Mr. Shao Hai Chen and Mr. Liu Shuang
Cheng as executive directors of the Company. The
appointment was effective on 8 April 2002,

Directors’ and Senior Management’'s
Blographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and
the senior management of the Group are set out on pages
18 to 22 of the Annual Report.

Service Contracts of the Directors and the
Supervisors

Mr. Fang Gang, Mr. Chen Li Wei, Mr. Dong Yong An
and Mr. Zhao Zhong Hai entered into service contracts
with the Company on 8 May 2000. Mr. Liu Wen Ying,
Mr. Cui Qi Hong, Mr. Li Teng Jiao, Mr. Zhang Jing, Mr.
Cao Chun Guo, Mr. Wang Wen Ding, Mr. Liu A Nan,
Mr. Xu Wei Lin, Ms. Wang Ai Ying and Mr. Yang You
Liang have entered into service contracts with the
Company on 12 September 2000. Mr. Shao Jian Xin has
entered into service contract with the Company on 18
Febuary 2002. Mr. Liu Da Gong, Mr. Shao Hai Chen,
Mr. Liu Shuang Cheng have entered into service contracts
with the Company on 8 April 2002. These service
contracts are the same in all material respects, details of
which are set out as below:

(i)  Each service contract commences from the date of
the contract to 7 May 2003;

(ii) The total annual salaries payable to each of the
executive directors each year for the three years
term will be RMB40,000, RMB44,000 and
RMB48,400 respectively. The total annual salaries
payable to each of the supervisors each year for the
three years term will be RMB24,000, RMB26,400
and RMB29,040 respectively; and

8.

14.

ARAR-BEENANBERTERREEAS
FEEE R RELEREE \Tﬁlﬁ%$5&%§&@:@*f{
BAREE  BEREERFERELERALAZNT
B HEEFESEZFHANADEEL

]
=

[
T
il
-:3
)
iz

AREEERARESHEEE RSN A FEREHIS
EHLHE -

PREE L EREERED 4
EdEs & g?ﬁ" EE 7#% = &

FREIEE  BRUIRAE  BEALZRERBEPELERCE
EEFHANHERLFRIIRBEN - BIXEEE - £
EBEE - FRmAL  RERSE  ERELL  IRE
FE - BIREEL  FEMEL EERRLLRGERRL
EER_BEEFEART BEAQFRIIRESN - &
EREAR_EE-_H# AT /AHEADEFIIRES
£ BIRT AL BBREERIERALNR _ZET_F
MEAHELFRIREESH - BEGHNERREATE
SR - AMEEFIAF

() BERBEHHGHANEE-ZEZ=F1ALH"

REFECREBSN > RERNTEURTESHESE
FEEEE S R R A R #40,0007T « A B #44,0007T K
ARBEAB400TT - MR ZFEZIRBHIA - REENT
FAEBOHBEES BB A RE24,000T - AR
26,4007C B A R B 29,0407C 5 R




14,

15.

Service Contracts of the Directors and the
Supervisors (continued)

(iii) Furthermore, each executive director or supervisor
is entitled to a bonus upon completion of each full
year of service. The bonuses payable to each of the
executive directors each year for the three years
term will not be more than RMB20,000,
RMB22,000 and RMB24,200 respectively. The
bonuses payable to each of the supervisors each
year for the three years term will not be more than
RMB12,000, RMB13,200 and RMB14,520
respectively.

Save as aforesaid, none of the directors has any service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment other than

statutory compensation.

Directors' and Supervisors' Interests in
Contracis

During the year, no director or supervisor had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a

party.
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Contracts of Significance

On 31 May 2001, the Company and its subsidiaries have
entered into five conditional Renewal Agreements and
three conditional Supplementary Agreements with their
controlling shareholder China First Tractor Group
Company Limited (the "Holding") and its subsidiaries,
to renew and amend (as the case may be) the agreements
made on 6 June 1997 and 21 September 1998,
respectively. According to the Renewal Agreements and
the Supplementary Agreements, all relevant parties
conditionally agreed to renew the term of the five Renewal
Agreements from 8 May 2001 to 7 May 2004; and to
amend the term of the three Supplementary Agreements
by extending it from 7 May 2002 and 8 October 2002,
respectively, to expire on 7 May 2004. The eight
agreements which constitute connected transactions in
accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) are set out below:

1. The Renewal Agreement of the Composite Services
Agreement entered into between the Holding and
the Company on 31 May 2001;

2. The Renewal Agreement of the Import and Export
Agency Agreement entered into between Yituo
International Economic and Trade Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Holding,
and the Company on 31 May 2001;

3. The Renewal Agreement of the Materials Supply
Agreement entered into between the Holding and
the Company on 31 May 2001;

4.  The Renewal Agreement of the Materials Supply
Agreement entered into between Holding and Yituo
(Luoyang) Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.,
(“YCMC™) a subsidiary of the Company, on 31
May 2001;

5. The Renewal Agreement of the Composite Services
Agreement entered into between the Holding and
YCMC on 31 May 2001;
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18.

Contracts of Significance (continued)

6. The Supplementary Agreement of the Projects
Construction and Installation Contracting
Agreement entered into between the Holding and
the Company on 31 May 2001;

7. The Supplementary Agreement of the Energy
Supply Services Agreement entered into between
the Holding and the Company on 31 May 2001,

8.  The Supplementary Agreement of the Composite
Services Agreement entered into between the
Holding and Yituo (Luoyang) Building Machinery
Co., Ltd. (“YBMC"), a subsidiary of the Company,
on 31 May 2001.

Due to the ongoing nature of these connected transactions,
the transactions stated in the above agreements are
collectively known as the "Ongoing Connected

Transactions".

On 24 August 2001, the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company approved the agreements of the Ongoing
Connected Transactions. The Company has applied on
16 July 2001 to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the grant of and has been granted on 14
September 2001 a waiver from compliance with the
relevant ongoing disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules in respect of the Ongoing Connected Transactions.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries has entered into any contract of
significance with the controlling shareholder at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2001.
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17.

18.

Substanite: Sharenholders

As at 31 December 2001, the following interests of 10%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 16(1) of the Securities
(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance of Chapter 396 of the
laws of Hong Kong (“SDI Ordinance”):

!

5 D ER

ere g

A
'

3
i

N
)

A

b

REFZ-FFZRZA—H RBRLATETEENSE
396F R 77 (R B R 28 ) R (T LR MEZR I L) B8 16(1) MR A
MEMFECERETMADH  EFALRACRITRAE
0% EZBRRAT

Number Percentage of
Shareholders Class of shares total shares
('000 shares) (%)
R il Rin (&) SRy &Nl
China First Tractor Group State-owned legal 450,000 57.32
Company Limited person shares
TE—-EREERAF BHAEEAR
The HKSCC Nominees Limited H shares 329,456 41.97
FRETRERE(REAERAH Hi

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an
interest in the share capital of the Company that was
required to be recorded under Section 16(1) of the SDI
Ordinance.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in
Shares

As at 31 December 2001, none of the directors or
supervisors of the Company held any shares in the
Company. None of the directors or supervisors had
interest in the share capital in, or debentures of, the
Company or any of its associated companies (as defined
in the SDI Ordinance). The Company did not grant to
any directors and supervisors or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age any right to subscribe
for securities in, or debenture of, the Company and none
of the above persons exercised any of such right.
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19. Connected Transactions

The Group's connected transactions as defined in the
Listing Rules are set out in note 39 to the financial

statements,

Save for such transactions, the Company also has the
following connected transactions:

(i) the Company has granted a loan of RMB2 million
to a 70% owned subsidiary, Guizhou Zhenning
Biological Industrial Co., Ltd. during the year. Such
balance was granted in the form of designated
deposit through a bank in the PRC.

(i) On 21 November 2001, Brilliance China Machinery
Holdings Limited (“BCM”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an acquisition agreement
with Hong Kong Shuntat Technological Industrial
Company (an independent third party), for the
acquisition of the 25% shareholding of Yituo
(Luoyang) Diesel Company Ltd. (“YLDC”) from
Hong Kong Shuntat Technological Industrial
Company for a cash consideration of USDI1.5
million. YLDC is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture
company incorporated in the PRC with registered
capital of USD 6 million, of which the Holding
held a 75% equity interest.

(iii) On 1 December 2001, the Holding and YCMC
entered into an “Asset Leasing Agreement” in
supplement of the “Equipment Leasing Agreement”
and the “Building Leasing Agreement” executed
by them on 6 June 1997 wherein the building rental
and the equipment rental for the period from 1
January 2001 to 31 December 2001 are
RMB?2,143,157 and RMB2,115,236, respectively,
amounting to an aggregate of RMB4,258,393. The
other terms pursuant to the “Equipment Leasing
Agreement” and the “Building Leasing Agreement”

remain unchanged.

3

19.

Report of the Directors BB FH & B

HERS

AEENEER 5 (EES R Em# ) &85 5 mER
39

BREELHI  AARSEETTIMERS

() FR ARXAREEF0%ER BRI RNHEE
EYTEARLFREREAR2,000,0000C 2 &
F o ZEHERUTE-RRTLERTRZITAAR
i

WZBE—-F+—AZ+—H ARFANRBLRIER
HEBEERERAR(TEREBM DETEDLER
HEELF(BUEZFITINEGE  DBEER
{H1,500000E T EFHLERBEELFBA—#
(BB LEmBERLE (T —IELEME ) 25%2
e AR AN TBEMRIZPHEEREA
B HEE & AR $56,000,000E 7T o i H 75%H% HE
RAERE -

(if)

WoBE—-E+"F—H #RoFEIEERE
(FEREHR UERE TN - AhLERAAH
FN(RFERERRN(EEREGER) - )i
EEE-F-A-HE_ZZE-H+°-A=+—H
WEEHESHREHE B ARE2143157TTR
AR 11523670 » SiT AR 42583937 » Lt
(REHERB N(EEMERR) N E R
Y

(ii1)




Report of the Directors 8

§

9.

EHEG

r@ﬁ%

Ligd,
Ceuﬁf

Cennecled Transaciions (continued)

(iv)

)

On 1 December 2001, the Holding and YBMC
entered into an “Asset Leasing Agreement” in
supplement of the “Equipment Leasing Agreement”
executed by them on 21 September 1998 wherein
the building rental and the equipment rental for the
period from 1 January 2001 to 31 December 2001
are RMB145,663 and RMB396,592, respectively,
amounting to an aggregate of RMB542,255. The
other terms pursuant to the “Equipment Leasing

Agreement” remain unchanged.

On 25 August 2001, China Yituo Group Finance
Limited Company and YBMC entered into an
agreement to increase the registered capital of China
First Tractor Group Finance Limited Company
wherein YBMC had invested an additional capital
of RMB 10,000,000 to China First Tractor Group
Finance Limited Company on 30 August 2001.

After reviewing the current year's connected transactions,

the independent non-executive directors of the Company

confirm that:

@

(i1)

(iti)

the transactions were carried out in the normal and
usual course of business of the Group;

the transactions were carried out either (a) on normal
commercial terms (as compared with transactions
of similar nature carried out by similar entities in
the PRC) or (b) (if no similar condition to be
compared with) on terms that are fair and reasonable
so far as the shareholders of the Company are

concerned; and

the transactions were carried out (a) in accordance
with the terms of agreement governing such
transactions or (b) if no relevant agreement, on
terms no less favourable than terms available to the
third parties.
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20.

Application of the Proceeds from the H
Sxares lssue

The Company raised approximately RMB1,615,500,000
(approximately HK$1,507,500,000) by the issue of
335,000,000 new H shares (the "Shares") under the initial
public offering of the Company's H Shares listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 23 June 1997
and two subsequent partial exercises of over-allotment
option.

The proceeds from the H Shares issue were used in
accordance with the Prospectus as follows:

. as to approximately RMB&7,900,000 for payment
of new issue expenses;

. as to approximately RMB281,395,000 for the
acquisition of shares in BCM, Shanghai Qiangnong
(Group) Company Limited and First Tractor Ningbo
C.S.1. Tractor & Automobile Corp., Ltd. as well as
investment in First Tractor Qingjiang Tractor
Company Limited, First Tractor Shenyang Tractor
Company Limited, Yituo (Luoyang) Harvester Co.,
Ltd. (“YLHC”) and YCMC;

. as to approximately RMB323,920,000 for the
acquisition of fixed assets and additional
construction in progress (for production lines of
100-120 horse-power wheeled tractors and 100-120
horse-power crawler tractors and large pressure die-
casting lines and other technological improvement

projects);

. as to approximately RMB305,900,000 for the
repayment of bank loans and approximately
RMB102,000,000 for the repayment of a debt owing
to Holding; and

. as to the balance for the Company's additional

general working capital.
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21.

22.

23.

24,

Direcliors’ and Supervisors' Inleresis in

u

Compeling Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of
the directors or supervisors of the Company are considered
to have interests in a business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Stafl Quarter

As all staff quarters have been retained by the Holding,
the Company does not have any staff quarters to sell to its
staff. Pursuant to its existing policy, the staff of the
Company shall buy the staff quarters at their own expenses
(including quarters retained by the Holding).

Housing Policy

Regarding the allocation of housing subsidies policy
promulgated by the State, the Company has not yet
received the details of the implementation rules and the
policy still cannot be implemented. The Company
currently does not have any plans or intention regarding
the implementation of housing subsidies allocation policy.
As such, the Company believes that the policy did not
have any significant impact on the financial statements
of the Company for the year 2001.

Desigreated Deposit and Deposit Due

The Company had no deposits with any non-banking
financial institutions. In June 2001 and September 2001,
the Company granted loans of RMB100 million and
RMB2 million to its two subsidiaries, namely, YBMC
and Guizhou Zhenning Biological Industrial Co., Ltd.,
respectively. The loans were granted in the form of
designated deposits in certain commercial banks in the
PRC. Save as aforesaid, the Company had no other
designated deposits. All of the Company's cash deposits
are placed with commercial banks in the PRC and are in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
Company has not experienced any incidence of not being

able to withdraw bank deposit when due.
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27.

2olicies on Unified Income Tax

The corporate income tax of the Company is subject to
33% tax rate based on its assessable profits.

Land Use Rights

Under the land leasing agreement entered into between
the Company and the Holding on 4 June 1997, the
Company is entitled to the right of use of land for 50
years from the effective date of the agreement.
Furthermore, the Company possesses the ownership
certificates of the buildings.

Important Evenis

1. On 12 January 2001, subject to the approval of the
Board of Directors, the Company further invested
USD19,500,000 into its subsidiary BCM. The
investment is classified as overseas investment and
relevant approval procedures are proceeding now.

2. On 22 May 2001, the Company has further invested
RMB15,695,000 in its subsidiary YLHC. The
Company's percentage of shareholdings in YLHC
has increased from 90% to 93.4%.

3. On 21 November 2001, BCM, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an acquisition agreement
with Shuntat Technology Industrial Company for
the acquisition of the 25% shareholdings of Yituo
(Luoyang) Diesel Engine Company Limited
("YLDC") at a consideration of USD[,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,700,000).
YLDC is engaged in the design, manufacture and
sale of diesel engine and its ancillary products.

4. On 5 December 2001, the Company signed a Letter
of Intent on Cooperation with Vatral do Brasil S.A.,
a subsidiary of %5 B # &l /> T, pursuant to which
both parties would cooperate to produce and sell
big and medium power wheeled tractors. At present,
the cooperation is in good progress and both parties
will explore further cooperating opportunities.
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Report of the Directors ER FH &5
27. Imporiant Events (coniinued) 27.
5. On 18 February 2002, in a meeting held by the TEECE_RHAH AAREEGEHGE - E
board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Dong Yong BEXREEERALNAEERUAGRHEARLAES
An was elected as the Chairman of the Company to ERBITEENARLE » MU EEALF
replace Mr. Fang Gang who resigned from the HIESERPTEECHT - gHARMEERRL
position of the Chairman and Executive Director. EREANFHCERY TEERRLERAL
Besides, Mr. Chen Li Wei also resigned from the FESHE s BEREE  BEESERAAFEIER
position of Vice Chairman and Executive Director. B ANABTARREBRBEALAZENHEE
The meeting also approved the resignation of Mr. BOEFEERARRBINEEUREEAAEREBT
Cui Qi Hong from General Manager of the EENBEZLE -
Company. In the meeting, Mr. Shao Hai Chen was
appointed as General Manager of the Company;
Mr. Yang You Liang and Mr. Guo Zhi Qiang were
appointed as the Deputy General Manager of the
Company. On the same day, the staff representative
of the Company elected Mr. Shao Jian Xin as
Supervisor of staff representative in accordance with
the Company's articles of association so as to replace
Mr. Yang You Liang who resigned from the position
of Supervisor of staff representative.
6. On 8 April 2002, the extraordinary general meeting TEE-ENANAE AN FARERBEEA ST
held by the Company approved the resignation of FHIGE ~ TR AR ERN T E RIS e
Mr. Fang Gang and Mr. Chen Li Wei as directors KTl BEENE REER k4 BARNEHTE
of the Company. Mr. Liu Da Gong, Mr. Shao Hai o
Chen and Mr. Liu Shuang Cheng were elected as
the newly appointed directors of the Company.
28. Post Balance Sheet Event 28, ZBEEBEBEE
Details of the significant post balance sheet event of the AEEBZEARESREEABRNTEEENH4W0-
Group is set out in note 40 to the financial statements.
29. Code of Best Practice 20, REBETH
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company complied HFEeIBANTRERMME cBEGHHENE YT
with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 THEHA U EEERTIREX -
of the Listing Rules, throughout the accounting period
covered by the annual report.
38




30.

31.

32.

Yaterial Litigation

During the period of this report, none of the Company,
the Directors, Supervisors nor senior officers of the
Company had engaged in any material litigation or

arbitration.
Aucit Committee

The Company has an audit committee which was
established in accordance with the requirements of the
Code, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group's financial reporting process
and internal controls. The audit committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors of the

Company.
Auditors
Ernst & Young retired and a resolution for their

reappointment as auditors of the Company will be

proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

Dong Yong An

Chairman

Luoyang, the PRC
26 April 2002
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Report of the Supervisory Committec B E R & B

I herein report that the Supervisory Committee of the Company
has executed the function of monitoring and protected the legal
interests of the shareholders and the Company in accordance
with the duties stipulated in the Company Law of the PRC and
the Articles of Association of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2001.

1. To exercise the functions of monitoring the directors,
general manager and other senior officers. In 2001, there
was no report or discovery of the violation of the Articles
of Association, the laws and regulations and actions that
infringed upon the interests of the Company by the
directors, general manager and other senior officers of
the Company in the opinion of the Supervisory
Committee, they could carry out their duties honestly,
comply with the laws and protect the interests of all the
shareholders.

During the year, the Company had no material litigation
nor did the Supervisory Committee have any negotiation
with the Directors or bring any action against them on
behalf of the Company.

2. To review the operation and financial position of the
Company. The Supervisory Committee considers that the
financial statements of the Company for the year 2001
which has been audited by an international accounting
firm reflects a true and fair view of the operating results
and assets of the Company in such year.

3. To check the financial statements and the proposal of
profit distribution, which were proposed to the general
meeting by the Directors. The Supervisory Committee
considers that the above statements and the proposal have
complied with the provisions of relevant laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association.

4,  In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Supervisors attended the Directors’
meetings and monitored the matters resolved by the Board
of Directors.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Liu A Nan
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Luoyang, the PRC
26 April 2002
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Notice of Annual General Meeting R EEFXFTES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 2001 Annual General
Meeting (“AGM?"”) of First Tractor Company Limited (“the
Company”) will be held at No.154, Jianshe Road, Luoyang,
Henan Province, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on
Friday, 14 June 2002 at 9:00 a.m. for the purpose of passing
the resolutions as listed below:

1. As ordinary resolutions:

1. To consider and approve the Report of the Board of
Directors of the Company for the year 2001;

2. To consider and approve the Report of the
Supervisory Committee for the year 2001,

3. To consider and approve the audited financial report
for the year 2001,

4 . To consider and approve the dividend distribution
proposal for the year ended 31 December 2001;

5. To consider and approve the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2002 and to authorise
the Board of Directors of the Company to determine
the terms for such appointment;

6.  To consider and approve the remuneration proposals
for the directors and supervisors of the Company ;

7. To consider and approve the resignation of Mr. Hon
Fong Ming as the independent non-executive

director of the Company; and

8.  To consider any other business.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting /& 78 8 & J

special resolutions:

1. Subject to the stipulations of Article 12 of the
“Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
to authorise the Board of Directors of the Company
to determine any investment plan or proposal in
respect of other limited companies, joint stock
limited companies or other economic entities or
projects, including but not limited to decisions on
projects of investment, the companies or other
economic entities to be invested, the amount, the
method (including by way of issuance of the
domestic invested shares or overseas listed foreign
invested shares) and the time of investment and the
execution of the relevant agreements and other
documents; and

To authorise the Board of Directors of the Company
to declare an interim dividend to the shareholders
of the Company for the half year ended 30 June
2002.

By order of the Board
Zhang Guo Long

Acting Company Secretary

Luoyang, the PRC
26 April 2002

Notes:

>

The register of members of the Company’s shares will be temporarily
closed from 15 May 2002 to 14 June 2002 (both days inclusive) during
which no transfer of shares will be registered in order to determine the
list of shareholders for attending the AGM. The last lodgement for
share transfer should be made on 14 May 2002 at Hong Kong Registrars
Limited by or before 4:00 p.m. The Company’s shareholders or their
proxies being registered before the close of business on 14 May 2002
are entitled to attend the general meeting by presenting their identity
documents. The address of H share registrar of the Company, Hong
Kong Registrars Limited is 2/F., Vicwood Plaza, No. 199 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Each shareholder having the rights to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies (whether a shareholder or not)
to attend and vote on his behalf. Should more than one proxy be
appointed by one shareholder, such proxy shall only exercise his voting

rights on a poll.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting R B EFXEL S

Shareholders can appoint a proxy by an instrument in writing (i.e. by
using the Proxy Form enclosed). The Proxy Form shall be signed by
the person appointing the proxy or an attorney authorised by such
person in writing. If the Proxy Form is signed by an attorney, the
power of attorney or other documents of authorisation shall be notarially
certified. To be valid, the Proxy Form and the notarially certified
power of attorney or other documents of authorisation must be delivered
to the above legal address of the Company in not less than 24 hours
before the time scheduled for the holding of the AGM.

Shareholders or proxies who intend to -attend the AGM are requested
to deliver the reply slip for attendance duly completed and signed to
the Company in person, by post or by facsimile on or before Friday,
24 May 2002.

Shareholders or their proxies shall present proofs of their identities
upon attending the AGM. Should a proxy be appointed, the proxy
shall also present the Proxy Form.

The AGM is expected to last for less than one day. The shareholders
and proxies attending the AGM shall be responsible for their own
travelling and accommodation expenses.

The Company’s registered address:

No. 154, Jianshe Road, Luoyang, Henan Province, the PRC
Postal code: 471004

Telephone: 86-379-4967038

Facsimile: 86-379-4967438

E-mail address: msc0038@public2.lyptt.ha.cn
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Report of the Imterngtions. Auditors =

El] ERNST & YOUNG

2 K & OB OF B O

To the members

First Tracter Company Limited

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 46 to 108
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility to
form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those

statements and to report our opinion to you.
Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes an examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in
the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s and the
Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.
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Report of the International Auditors FIESEEH G

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2001 and of the loss and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 April 2002
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Consolidated Profit and Less Accoun

Year ended 31 December 2001
BE BE—FEA_F=+—HIEFE

&+

L

E}Jg

T e =
GEEGE

Notes 2001 2000
e ZZBFE—F _FEEF
RMB*000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR®BTI

TURNOVER EEE 5 1.863,824 1,997,314
Cost of sales HERA (1,625,739) (1,738,817)
Gross profit £ 238,085 258,497
Other revenue and gains H A R 5 99,697 64,993
Selling expenses HESBH (89,516) (109,255)
Administrative expenses EHER (216,242) (195,494)
Other operating expenses HRzEEH (95,505) (138,628)
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RELZBHE 6 (63,481) (119,887)
Finance costs % EH 7 (20,168) (19,627)
Share of profits less losses of : FE 1k i F F PR 18

Jointly-controlled entity R 830 861

Associates /N (14,788) (29,403)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FRRIATE B (97,607) (168,056)
Tax RIE 10 (16,786) (13,142)
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS HRETDH I EE R ARG E (114,393) (181,198)
Minority interests DB EER (3,406) 24,145
NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES R EEHE XS

ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS EERE 11 (117,799) {157,053)
LOSS PER SHARE - Basic HRBE-EX 12 15.01 cents 20.01 cents
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Consolidated Staterent of Recognised Gains and Losses & & BB E 5

Year ended 31 December 2001
HE_ZE—F+_AZ+—-HIEH

Net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders

Total recognised gains and losses

Goodwill eliminated directly against

consolidated reserves

Note 2001 2000
M —ZZBE-F C_ZEEEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TT

BREHELEAFER
BHEFE (117,799) (157,053)
MR i R R AR (117,799) (157,033)
EREGFOERESCEE 33 — (14,269)
(117,799) (171,322)
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Consciidated Balznce Sheet 5 E
31 December 2001
THE—EFIREF-H

iy

&

nﬂ(é

13

;
Y

3%

Notes 2001 2000
ffEE ZEE—F _ZEFETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFIT ABR%¥TT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Fixed assets TEE 13 801,858 870,381
Construction in progress EEI% 14 59,032 63,468
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity BREEE B 17 29,388 28,688
Interests in associates {‘M/\T%?ﬁ 18 — 14,788
Long term investments EH®RE 19 91,608 48,608
981,886 1,025,933

CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories 7E 20 559,455 599,038
Trade and bills receivables FEULERZ &FWE% 21 423,589 487,419
Other receivables = ¢ 22 128,031 103,472
Short term investments HEsE 25 82,264 109,640
Pledged deposits [ 26 23,302 —
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 26 890,052 967,285
2,106,693 2,266,854
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE

Trade and bills payables I“ ﬁﬁﬁ KR EN R 27 373,254 403,325
Tax payable XhE 2,533 11,007
Other payables and accruals ﬁﬁiﬁ“ TRk EE A& 28 280,119 363,863
Interest-bearing bank and other loans B A B SRAT A H A B 3K 30 257,060 194,039
912,966 972,234
NET CURRENT ASSETS BIEEE 1,193,727 1,294,620
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EERBERRBAE 2,175,613 2,320,553

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EMBAHE
Interest-bearing bank loans MR S IRITEK 30 — 24,790
Deferred tax AT A 31 1,234 3,702
1,234 28,492
MINORITY INTERESTS VB EER 66,047 65,930
2,108,332 2,226,131

CAPITAL AND RESERVES R A o B
Issued capital ERETRA 32 785,000 785,000
Reserves fE 33 1,323,332 1,441,131
2,108,332 2,226,131

Dong Yong An HR %
Director®5

Shao Hai Chen i i} B
Director&B %
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement GEFERER
Year ended 31 December 2001
BE EE—F+_F=+—HI-FE

Notes 2001 2000
i CEE-® CEEIA
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥BTIL AR®TIT

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM MR L

OPERATING ACTIVITIES FHEHA /() 34(a) (6.887) 125,960
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND s EIE Y

SERVICING OF FINANCE BEER
Interest received LU F] E 32,523 27,927
Interest paid SRS (20,168) (19,627)
Dividend income from long term unlisted R LfikEZ

investments e 2 A 1,250 —
Investment income received from M EHEREC

short term listed investments BERA 7,400 —
Dividends paid AT R — (41,703)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders XD ERE RS (3,289) (2,245)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from returns on RERNBREEERZ

| investments and servicing of finance FBHEEHRA /G 17,716 (35,648)

TAX M
Income tax paid TSR (31,355 (18,597)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REIEE
Purchases of fixed assets and additions MELTEER

to construction in progress MmEEIREEE (65,987) {46,966)
Purchases of long term investments BMERMRE (43,000) (21,302)
Purchases of short term investments BEEURE (121,509) (107,504)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W RIS BB 2 =] 34(c) — 3,000
Acquisition of minority interests B A B Tt SRR B 34(d) - (129,353)
Proceeds from disposal of short term investments HEELREEIE 155,956 53,000
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets B E A & SRR 2,904 3,407
Increase in pledged deposits [SEiigEEcrer il (23,302) —
Increase in time deposits with original FHHALH =AW

maturity of more than three months when acquired FHATF (32,275 (4,225)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEH I FAERH (127,213) (249,943)
NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE BHEEHIZ

FINANCING ACTIVITIES FHEM L (147,739) (178,228)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZETH 34(b)
New bank and other loans P sRIT R HME R 309,220 258,270
Repayment of bank and other loans BB IRT R EMEK (270.989) (231411
Net cash inflow from financing activities BELEEYCBRENA 38,231 20,859

49




, or 4o - T Tl ey Qs e B TE [y WS EL TS
Comsolica’ed Cesh Rlow Stetement FEEGIIRERE
Year ended 31 December 2001
BE ER-E RS HIEEE
2001 2000
ZBE-H% “EZREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE AR®TT
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HR&RHREEEYoED (109,508) (157.369)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHcRERREEHEY 427,909 585,278
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R CEER
END OF YEAR REEEY 318,401 427,909
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRHCEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEREE A
Cash and bank balances RE RBITHER 266,604 333,261
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of FHALR=(E R
less than three months when acquired FERBEHER 51,797 94,648

318,401 427,909
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Balance Sheet &2 2 F %

31 December 2001
Sgg—Et AT

Notes 2001 2000
et ZZE-—F —ZBEEZFL
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR®BTT AR®TT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Fixed assets & E & & 13 619,277 667,776
Construction in progress FETE 14 51,946 56,074
Interests in subsidiaries B 2 R M A 16 597,539 708,712
Investment in a jointly-controlied entity BEERTREE 17 25,000 25,000
Investments in associates s N EHRE 18 — 15,000
Long term investments EHRE 19 35,303 25,303
1,349,065 1,497,865

CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories G5 20 226.151 258,283
Trade and bills receivables FEUBR 70 e JE U 22 4% 21 97,696 80,752
Other receivables H A RE I 22 65,053 47,856
Short term investments EHHIE 25 80,000 100,000
Pledged deposits SRR R 26 16,446 —
Cash and cash equivalents REeRIREEEY 26 641,584 647,172
1,126.932 1,134,063
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE

Trade and bills payables IR KEMNER 27 221,432 246,686
Tax payable JEZ M & — 3,055
Other payables and accruals HMEMN SR BT AE 28 129,687 138,919
Interest-bearing bank loans MEEF S 2 IRITERK 30 25,000 20,000
376,119 408,660
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREEE 750,813 725.403
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HEAERNEAE 2,099,878 2,223,268

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES B &E
Interest-bearing bank loans R R B 2 AT E K 30 — 5,000
Deferred tax R TE 31 1,234 3,702
1,234 8,702
2,098,644 2,214,566

CAPITAL AND RESERVES % 7 B R
Issued capital ERITRA 32 785,000 785,000
Reserves =4 33 1,313,644 1,429,566
2,098,644 2,214,566

Dong Yong An &%
Director# &

Shao Hai Chen J ifj &
DirectorZ %
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During the year, the Group was involved in the following

principal activities:

° manufacture and sale of tractors and related parts

and components

° manufacture and sale of road machinery

° manufacture and sale of construction machinery

° manufacture and sale of agricultural harvesting
machinery

° manufacture and sale of biochemical products

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is China First Tractor Group

Company Limited (the “Holding”), which is established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

)

The following recently-issued and revised SSAPs and
related Interpretations are effective for the first time for

the current year’s financial statements:

° SSAP 9 (Revised): “Events after the balance sheet
date”

° SSAP 14 (Revised): “Leases”
° SSAP 18 (Revised): “Revenue”
° SSAP 26: “Segment reporting”

° SSAP 28: “Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets”
° SSAP 29: “Intangible assets”
° SSAP 30: “Business combinations”
° SSAP 31: “Impairment of assets”

° SSAP 32: “Consolidated financial statements and
accounting for investments in subsidiaries”

° Interpretation 12: “Business combinations -
subsequent adjustment of fair values and goodwill
initially reported”
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (“SSAPs”)
(continued)

. Interpretation 13: “Goodwill - continuing
requirements for goodwill and negative goodwill

previously eliminated against/credited to reserves”

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and
disclosure practices. The major effects. on the Group’s
accounting policies and on the amounts disclosed in these
financial statements of those SSAPs and Interpretations
which have had a significant effect on the financial

statements are summarised as follows:

SSAP 9 (Revised) prescribes which type of events
occurring after the balance sheet date require adjustment
to the financial statements, and which require disclosure,
but no adjustment. The revised SSAP has not had any
material impact on the financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2001 and 31 December 2000.

SSAP 14 (Revised) prescribes the basis for lessor and
lessee accounting for finance and operating leases, and
the required disclosures in respect thereof. Certain
amendments have been made to the previous accounting
measurement treatments, which may be accounted for
retrospectively or prospectively, in accordance with the
requirements of the SSAP. The revised SSAP
requirements have not had a material effect on the
amounts previously recorded in the financial statements,
therefore no prior year adjustment has been required.
The disclosure changes under this SSAP have resulted in
changes to the detailed information disclosed for operating
leases, which are further detailed in note 37 to the financial

statements.

SSAP 18 (Revised) prescribes the recognition of revenue
and was revised as a consequence of the revision to SSAP
9 described above. Proposed final dividends from
subsidiaries that are declared and approved by the
subsidiaries after the balance sheet date are no longer
recognised in the Company’s own financial statements
for the year. The revised SSAP has not had any material

impact on these financial statements.
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SSAP 26 prescribes the principles to be applied for
reporting financial information by segment. It requires
that management assesses whether the Group’s
predominant risks or returns are based on business
segments or geographical segments and determines one
of these bases to be the primary segment information
reporting format, with the other as the secondary segment
information reporting format. The impact of this SSAP
is the inclusion of significant additional segment reporting
disclosures which are set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

SSAP 28 prescribes the recognition criteria and
measurement bases to apply to provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, together with the required
disclosures in respect thereof. SSAP 28 has not had any
material impact on these financial statements, except that
note 29 to the financial statements “Provision for product
warranties” has been added to include the new required
additional disclosures.

SSAP 30 prescribes the accounting treatment for business
combinations, including the determination of the date of
acquisition, the method for determining the fair values of
the assets and liabilities acquired, and the treatment of
goodwill or negative goodwill arising on acquisition. The
SSAP requires the disclosure of goodwill and negative
goodwill in the non-current assets section of the
consolidated balance sheet. It requires that goodwill is
amortised to the consolidated profit and loss account over
its estimated useful life. Negative goodwill is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account depending on
the circumstances from which it arose, as further described
in the accounting policy for negative goodwill disclosed
in note 3 to the financial statements. Interpretation 13
prescribes the application of SSAP 30 to goodwill arising
from acquisitions in previous years which remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves. The adoption
of the SSAP and Interpretation has not resulted in a prior
year adjustment, for the reasons detailed in notes 15 and
17 to the financial statements.
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2. [MPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (“SSAPs”)
(continued)

SSAP 31 prescribes the recognition and measurement
criteria for impairments of assets. The SSAP is required
to be applied prospectively and therefore, has had no
significant effect on amounts previously reported in prior

year financial statements.

SSAP 32 prescribes the accounting treatment and
disclosures for the preparation and presentation of
consol/idated financial statements, and has had no

significant impact on the preparation of these financial

statements.

In addition to the above new and revised SSAPs and

related Interpretations, certain minor revisions to the

following SSAPs are effective for the first time for the
‘» current year’s financial statements:

. SSAP 10: “Accounting for investments in
associates”

. SSAP 17: “Property, plant and equipment”

. SSAP 21: “Accounting for interests in joint

ventures”

The only significant effect of these revisions is that SSAP
17 requires that impairment losses on fixed assets are
aggregated with accumulated depreciation in note 13 to
the financial statements, whereas previously they were
deducted from the cost and accumulated depreciation of
the relevant asset. This disclosure reclassification has

had no significant effect on the net carrying amount of

fixed assets in the balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGKIFICANT ACCCUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with SSAPs, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the periodic remeasurement of debt and equity
investments, as further explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2001. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition
or disposal, respectively. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated

on consolidation.
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company, other than a jointly-controlled
entity, whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost

less any impairment losses.
Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by
contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
company operates as a separate entity in which the Group
and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture company’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with

the terms of the joint venture agreement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint venture companies (continued)
A joint venture company is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilaterai control
over the joint venture company;

(b) ajointly-controlled entity, if the Company does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control over

the joint venture company;

(¢) an associate, if the Company does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture company’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture

company; or

(d) along term investment, if the Company holds less
than 20% of the joint venture company’s registered
capital and has neither joint control of, norisin a
position to exercise significant influence over, the

joint venture company.
Jointly-controlled entity

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company
which is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of the jointly-controlled entity is included in the
consolidated profit and loss account and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group’s interest in the jointly-
controlled entity is stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity

method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The results of the jointly-controlled entity are included
in the Company’s profit and loss account to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investment in a jointly-controlled entity is treated as a

long term asset and is stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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L WA Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

$ (continued)
Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise

significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated profit
and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any

impairment losses.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in associates
are treated as long term assets and are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entity represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 10
years. In the case of associates and jointly-controlled
entity, any unamortised goodwill is included in the
carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately

identified asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

In prior years, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
eliminated against consolidated reserves in the year of
acquisition. The Group has adopted the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permits goodwill on
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 January 2001, to
remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.
Goodwill on subsequent acquisitions is treated according

to the new accounting policy above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PQLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-
controlled entity, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated
by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal,
including the attributable amount of goodwill which
remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as
appropriate. Any attributable goodwill previously
eliminated against consolidated reserves at the time of
acquisition is written back and included in the calculation

of the gain or loss on disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill
remaining eliminated against consolidated reserves, is
reviewed annually and written down for impairment when
it is considered necessary. A previously recognised
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless the
impairment loss was caused by a specific external event
of an exceptional nature that was not expected to recur,
and subsequent external events have occurred which have
reversed the effect of that event.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entity
represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
as at the date of acquisition, over the cost of the
acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the acquisition plan and that can be measured
reliably, but which do not represent identifiable liabilities
as at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative
goodwill is recognised as income in the consolidated

profit and loss account when the future losses and

expenses are recognised.
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SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Negative goodwill (continued)

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to
identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at the
date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account on a systematic
basis over the remaining average useful life of the
acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The amount of
any negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the
acquired non-monetary assets is recognised as income

immediately.

In the case of associates and jointly-controlled entity,
any negative goodwill not yet recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account is included in the
carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately

identified item on the consolidated balance sheet.

In prior years, negative goodwill arising on acquisitions
was credited to the capital reserve in the year of
acquisition. The Group has adopted the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permits negative goodwill on
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 January 2001, to
remain credited to the capital reserve. Negative goodwill
on subsequent acquisitions is treated according to the

new accounting policy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-
controlled entity, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated
by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal,
including the attributable amount of negative goodwill
which has not been recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account and any relevant reserves as appropriate.
Any attributable negative goodwill previously credited
to the capital reserve at the time of acquisition is written
back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss

on disposal.

6D

BRE E

ERaBBENUEHETR AN RERRERZH
FER  amBRERMILCERE  ENE/T#H
CUHBEECH T IERFEL  RERRAER - £7
AMBRCRBRENRELS FEBH < SHMEAHEE R
WA -

EREARARBEEHNEZECENT  TRHRERERR
RPERCEHBI ARRREET  MLFRFER
ERERDIIEEIHNES -

TRTEE  KEELCARENEMEET ARARE
e AEERWOHEREAFEIRCETHE - AEFF
BR-IZEE-E-R-HAlEECHEARBHESTAR
AR RERKECAEEBRE DUREE I BORR
H oo

RILEHBLAE - BELARBEENLER  HEER
SREEEHCFEENE  EFEAEGCBERTRERD
ZEGaRBLRENERERNZE) « ER R
R AEAEH I REEREIFENE > TEEEHE
BaET -




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties

may be individuals or corporate entities.
Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of
whether there is any indication of impairment of any
asset, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in
prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or its

net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting

policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance

with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the profit and loss account in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each asset over its estimated useful
life, after taking into account its estimated residual value.

The estimated useful lives of fixed assets are as follows:

Buildings 8 - 30 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 6 - 16 years
Transportation vehicles and equipment 6 - 12 years

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset
recognised in the profit and loss account, is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents factory buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. Capitalisation of interest charges
and exchange difference ceases when the fixed assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
fixed assets when completed and ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading investments in
unlisted equity securities intended to be held on a long

term basis.

Unlisted securities are stated at their estimated fair values,
on an individual basis. The estimated fair values of
unlisted investments are determined by the directors
having regard to, inter alia, the prices of the most recently
reported sales or purchases of the securities, or
comparison of price/earnings ratios and dividend yields
of the securities with those of similar listed securities,
with allowance made for the lower liquidity of the unlisted

securities.

The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of a security are dealt with as movements in the long
term investment revaluation reserve, until the security is
sold, collected, or otherwise disposed of, or until the
security is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss derived from the security
recognised in the long term investment revaluation
reserve, together with the amount of any further
impairment, is charged to the profit and loss account in
the period in which the impairment arises. Where the
circumstances and events which led to an impairment
cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the
new circumstances and events will persist for the
foreseeable future, the amount of the impairment
previously charged and any appreciation in fair value is
credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the
amount previously charged.
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Shert term investments

Short term investments are investments in debt and equity
securities held for trading purposes and are stated at their
fair values on the basis of their quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date, on an individual investment basis.
The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of a security are credited or charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Spare parts and consumables are stated at cost less any

provision for obsolescence.
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash equivalents represent short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which were within three months of
maturity when acquired, less advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the
advance. For the purpose of balance sheet classification,
cash equivalents represent assets similar in nature to cash,

which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. Any increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the profit and loss
account.

Provision for product warranties is calculated based on
the unit rate charged by repair centres and the estimated
number of units of tractors and components already sold
which may require repairs and maintenance, discounted

to their present value as appropriate.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all significant timing differences to the extent it is
probable that the lability will crystallise in the foreseeable
future. A deferred tax asset is not recognised until its
realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

{a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) rental income and trademark licence fee, on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate applicable; and

(d) dividend and investment income, when the right to

receive payment has been established.
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the profit and loss

account as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the projects are
clearly defined; the expenditure is separately identifiable
and can be measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty
that the projects are technically feasible; and the products
have commercial value. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when

incurred.

Deferred development costs are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products not exceeding five years,
commencing from the date when the products are put

into commercial production.

N
&N

WA Z 3R

EALETRESEEN S  MEA R R RREET
FIEEEE T LIRERE

(a) HEH EREENEARRKABHCHEELER
% BARERT2EEGHESMEENERTRS
FREBEEHEEE R

() THSWARBEEME  HHEL LR O R

5
()  FIRUALIE A& B < BEF REFE PR
Bk

(d) BERBEERAERIN RN TR AK -

WoeEfE & A
MEE AN EERFIABRE -

ERFEE UMM AT - B R R A s
HE TS EMERREEERE LT - it
MEmEBHEEE  ARHFERMELNERTREAR
ERBORIE - REEWE DARFNELMZIERAERER
FTARHM -

BERBEALEREUZERTBAOFNEEERY
ETEE FEABUEMKAREEECHERR




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets and rentals receivable under
the operating leases are credited to the profit and loss
account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Foreign currencies

The Group’s financial records are maintained and the

financial statements are stated in Renminbi (“RMB™).

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates
as quoted by the People’s Bank of China. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the applicable rates
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date as quoted
by the People’s Bank of China. Exchange differences are

dealt with in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of the overseas
subsidiary is translated to Renminbi at the applicable
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences arising on consolidation

are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
Retirement benefits scheme

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme are charged to the profit and loss account as
incurred.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

SSAP 26 was adopted during the year, as detailed in note
2 to the financial statements. Segment information is
presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment; and (ii)
on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical

segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products they provide. Each of the
Group’s business segments represents a strategic business
unit that offers products which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business
segments. Summary details of the business segments are
as follows:

(a)  the tractors segment engages in the manufacture
and sale of tractors, relevant parts and components;

(b) the road machinery segment engages in the

manufacture and sale of road machinery;

(c) the construction machinery segment engages in the
manufacture and sale of construction machinery;

and

(d) the others segment comprises the manufacture and

sale of harvesters and biochemical products.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues and results are attributed to the segments based
on the location of the customers, and assets are attributed

to the segments based on the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss)
and certain asset, liability and expenditure
information for the Group’s business segments.

Notes to Financial Statements 14 7 &1 78 i 3k

31 December 2001
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DEEE(E)
(a) EHTHE

TRIFARERA - &/ (BRRETEE
BERHHNEETEEH -

Group AREE
Construction
Tractors Road machinery machinery Others Eliminations Consolidated
i BEB THEER Hil i e
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
“BE-% ZYEERF _FT-F "ITETF "BE-F "2ITE "IZF-F “TITHE "TT-F "BETE "BE-F TZEER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB(000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTL ARBTIL ARBTL ARETL ARMTT ARBTR ARETI ARETI ARETR ARMTI ARBTE
Segment revenue: SRMA
Sales to exiernal
customers HARE 1,300,242 1,454,681 433218 393,381 89,989 134,664 40,375 14,588 — — 1863824 1997314
Intersegment salkes S EEAEE 33,596 81,335 — - 88,582 108,492 — —  (122,078)  (189,827) - -
Total BE 1,333,838 1,536,016 433,218 393,381 178,571 243,156 40,375 14588 (122,178)  (189.827) [.863824 1,997.314
Segment results AR (135667)  (180353) 34793 28,894 2.828) 16016 6.023) (15371 - —  (IL75) (150814)
Interest, dividend and ¥[8 BER
investment income M H 48,988 30,927
Unallocated expenses R E 2 B (644) -
Loss from operating ~ BEEEHR
activities (63,4813 (119.887)
Finance costs MEBEEA (20168) (19627
Share of profits less {5 E A 18k
losses of: ER:
Jointly-controlled BAER
entity t¥ 830 861 - - - - - — — — 830 861
Associates BELE — — — - — — (14,788) (29,403) — — (14,788)  (29,403)
Loss before tax BitaiEE (97,607)  (168,056)
Tax HE (16786)  (13.142)
Loss before minority R D HRHEER
interests B (114393)  (181198)
Minority interests S HBHER (3.406) 24145

Net loss from ordinary
activities attribuiable B R FELSH %
ZEEHER

10 shareholders

(117,799 (157.053)
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4, SZIGMENT INFCRMATICN (continued) 4, REEE(E)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) EFETHEGE)
Group REHE
Construction
Tractors Road machinerv machinery Others Eliminations Consolidated
f# FEER TEEN £ i ga
2001 2000 2001 2000 1001 2000 2001 2000 001 2000 2001 2000
“gg-F  C%3%f "EEF-F  C2E%%F 3% TE%%F 8% CE8E¥F 3% CEE¥E  I3E-£ CEEEF
RMB'000 RMB00D RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB0G0 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'0G(
AEBTL  ARETT ARMTT AR%ETR ARETE  ARETT  ARETY  ARETR ARETR ARETTL AR%TI ARETI
Segment assets HERE 2322902 2301880 301,753 443933 168,310 167813 116,312 92,845 {28015 ) (15429 2381562 3,001,062
nterest in a ointly- RREHEE
controlled entity #n 29.388 28,688 - - - - -~ - - — 29,388 28,688
Interests in associates BELREY - — — - - - — 14,788 — — — 14,788
Unallocated assets RESRLHE 177629 158249
Total assels wHE 3088579 3200787
Segment liabilities HEAK 488,556 513,509 8,117 18421 34,643 W08 150,072 154.009 {228013) (115,429} 653373 T67.188
Unallocated isbilites ~ FEEAEZ AR WET IR
Total liabilities Ak 914,200 1,000,726
Other segment Eing
information; &H:
Capital expenditure BRRERL 4785 26592 10,047 12200 2,796 1408 3.289 13,349 - - 65,987 §5,556
Depreciation i 75515 84,468 6,819 10472 1518 2440 1191 549 - - 86.041 97919
mpairment losses RERE
recopnised in the g
profit and loss HiE
account B4 48,000 39,090 411 T80 - - - - - - 4841 3087
Other non-cash HfFRE
expenses: Hx:
Provision for bad and REEER
doubtful debts 5486 63651 15,000 1,600 2,500 - - - - - 22,986 64,651
Provisionf{reversal of HERE
pravisian) for EE/ (2R
absolete inventories ) (4900) 7000 1400 5,500 (4.700) 2800 2400 1300 - - (5.800) 16,600
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 0 SETE(H)

(b) Geographical segments (b) Hul&E4r 8
Over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results, assets AEEEROGIKA - £ BEREFHETHE
and capital expenditures are derived from operations BREMERE  RUEZTNHEFEEH -

carried out in the PRC and accordingly, no

geographical segment information is presented.
TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS 5. EEFE-LIAREE

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

ERBHHECRTCRINBRMNNBERFE > A0
HERMEBANTR5HHE -

&
net of discounts and returns, and excludes sales taxes 3
and intra-group transactions.

An analysis of turnover, other revenue and gains is as BEE - HMBARKR AT
follows:
2001 2000
“BE-F ZEZREF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTE
Turnover BE®
Sale of goods EmEE 1,863,824 1,997.314
Other revenue and gains it e A R g 45
Interest income FIEUA 32,523 27,927
Profit from sundry sales FETR S E R F 8,886 9,121
Rental income CER PN 3,220 —
Trademark licence fee HEFERE 10,320 —
Investment income from short term listed investments B HI F HiRE 2 HE KA 7,400 —
Gain on disposal of short term listed investments HEEH EHREZ KNS 7,715 3,000
Dividend income from long term unlisted investments RESELTHRECBREKRA 1,250 —
Others HAh 28,383 24,945
99,697 64,993
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8§88 FROM OPERA

TING ACTIVITIZ

The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

AEECEEBBERCEMR / GEA) A& H

2001 2000
ZEZ-F “EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Cost of inventories sold CEFERA 1,625,739 1,738,817
Depreciation e 86,041 97,929
Impairment of construction in progress FEETIREHE 411 10,135
Impairment of fixed assets EEEERME 48,000 29,735
Staff costs (excluding directors’ and RIBR(FEEES
supervisors’ remunerations - note 8): KEEME - IHES) !
Wages and salaries IEEFS 209,888 239,365
Pension contributions HEY NG 49,829 53,423
259,717 292,788
Minimum lease payments under REMHNHEEZ
operating lease rentals: BN R
Land and buildings THIEEEY 12,676 13,264
Plant and machinery 2% B2 2,877 5,245
15,553 18,509
Research and development costs T 9% B B 2 AR 6,143 6,459
Provision for product warranties B LR R RS 3,189 8,752
Auditors’ remuneration DA T 2,600 2,700
Provision for bad and doubtful debts FIEER 22,986 64,651
Provision/(reversal of provision) for MEGFE®RE/
obsolete inventories (YE ) (5,800) 16,600
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HERZEEERK 1,590 1,874
Unrealised loss on changes in fair values B EmREC A EEEE
of short term listed investments ZRBEEHE 644 -
Exchange losses/(gains), net FES L/ ()T (54) 843
Investment income from short term listed investments H i F iR EZRE WA (7,400) —
Gain on disposal of short term listed investments HEHH EHRE kR (7,715) (3,000
Dividend income from long term unlisted investments R HiJE FiREZ R ERA (1,250 —
Interest income fEBA (32,523) (27,927
Net rental income ek AZE (3,220 -
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FINANCE COSTS 7. WEBER
Group
AEH
2001 2000
“ZE-F “EEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT
Interest on bank and other loans RTERRARLEN
wholly repayable within five years PEERCHMER CHE S 20,168 19,627
Less: Interest capitalised B BERCZHE — —
20,168 19,627
REMUNERATIONS OF DIRECTORS AND 8. HIERBEZHES
SUPERVISORS
The directors’ and supervisors’ remunerations disclosed RETBRSRIMERLE LHHARMREEEL SRS
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities 161 GEMERCEEREEMSUWT -
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are
as follows:
Group
AEE
2001 2000
—BE-F —EZEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETIT ARETR
Fees e — —
Other emoluments: HAEENZ
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 EERBING 484 431
Performance related bonuses T ERHMARTEAL - —
Retirement fund contributions RIREGHT 136 114
620 545
620 545

There was no remuneration payable to the independent FRIEEN FPREILFDTEERALARBLREZHE
non-executive directors for their services rendered to the (ZEEEF #) -
Company during the year (2000: Nil).
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R TIONS OF DIRECTORS AND
@UPE:LH<3 IS (continued)

The number of directors and supervisors whose

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

(l m

MENFTIENCEEREEABAT

Number of directors and supervisors

EREREEAH
2001 2000
IEE-E TEZEF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 fEE I 1,000,0007T 19 30

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

FIVE H:QFEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during both years ended
31 December 2001 and 31 December 2000 were all
directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration

are set out in note 8 above.

0.

FRNGHEERENATRELAR S 2L -

REE-ZZ-F+IAZ+-HLEEREE-ZZEZ
E+ZA-t BLEECIAREFMEEGRALH
HE AMEFREN TES

4 T

TAX ’u% b
2001 2000
—EF & .
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR#TIT ARBTT
The Company and subsidiaries: NANETDE4 =N
PRC income tax provided for the year FEFZHERER 19,124 15,412
Deferred tax (note 31) BRERE(FTEEID (2.468) (2,468)
16,656 12,944
Share of tax attributable to: FEARTRIA -
Jointly-controlled entity B & 130 198
Associates /A — —
Tax charge for the year AEERBEIH 16,786 13,142
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11,

12.

TAX (continued)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits earned in or derived
from Hong Kong during the two years ended 31 December
2001.

The PRC income tax for the Company and its subsidiaries
is calculated at rates ranging from 12% to 33% (2000:
0% 10 33%), on their estimated assessable profits for the
year based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof,

Profits tax of the subsidiary operating outside the PRC is
subject to the rate applicable in its jurisdiction.

The PRC income tax of the associates and jointly-
controlled entity is calculated at rates ranging from 15%
to 33% (2000: 0% to 33%) on the respective company’s
assessable profits determined in accordance with the

relevant PRC laws and regulations.

There was no material unprovided deferred tax during
the year or at the balance sheet date (2000: Nil).

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHCLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company is RMB115,922,000 (2000: RMB147,310,000).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net
loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for
the year of RMB117,799,000 (2000: RMB157,053,000),
and the weighted average of 785,000,000 (2000:
785,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company
does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to Fimancial Statements W% R &
31 December 2001
SHEFET A=

FIKED ASSETS 13. EREE
Plant, Transportation
machinery vehicles and
Buildings  and equipment equipment Total
Group AER FREARSE BE - BE ERTH MR
e 54
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTIL ARBTRT ARETI
Cost: R
At beginning of year E4
As previously reported MELEIF 2R 748,579 1,134,088 75,179 1,957,346
Reclassified to accumulated BENAEER
depreciation and impairment R EE
(note) (B5E) 39,612 92,186 — 131,798
As restated FHVIER 788.191 1,226,274 75,179 2,089,644
Additions H 47 1,812 4,202 6,061
Transfer from construction REBIFEEA
in progress (note 14) (ftzx14) 8,927 52,119 2,905 63,951
Reclassifications BYAE — 5,055 (3,055) —
Disposals B (3,209) (15,319) (3,946) (22,474)
At 31 December 2001 REEE-H+_A=+—H 793,956 1,269,941 73285 2,137,182
Accumulated depreciation BEHIRE |
and impairment: REIE -
At beginning of year )
As previously reported WA ES 370,491 681,205 35,769 1087465
Reclassified from cost (note) feFEEREFH-HEME) 39,612 92,186 — 131,798
As restated BFTIE 410,103 773,391 35,769 1,219,263
Depreciation provided FAZHE
during the year 26,564 53,592 5,885 86,041
Reclassifications HHOE —_ 3,493 (3,493) —
Impairment during the year ERBEIIA
recognised in the profit HER
and loss account 14,000 34,000 — 48,000
Disposals By (2,107) (13,595) (2,278) (17,980)
At 31 December 2001 R-BE-E+-A=+—-H 448 560 350,881 35,883 1,335,324
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December 2001 RIBZE-#+"H=+—H 345,396 419,060 37,402 801,858
At 31 December 2000 R-EEEE+_HA=+—H 378,088 452,883 39,410 870,381
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13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13. BREBE(#)
Plant, Transportation
machinery  vehicles and
: Buildings and equipment equipment Total
Company ¥ NS FEREEY HE - BE HE@ LA R

R R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTFR ARETE ARKTR ARETR

Cost: JR1E
At beginning of year FE4) 603,370 1,027,666 21,937 1,652,973
Transfer from construction eFERIEEA
in progress (note 14) (1) 5,285 45,004 768 51,057
Disposals W (2,650) (13,358) (785) (16,793)
At 31 December 2001 REBE-FE+A=+—H 606,005 1,059,312 20,920 1,687,237
Accumulated depreciation 2
and impairment; REE:
At beginning of year )] 324,815 650,985 9,397 985,197
Provided during the year il 21,762 45,016 2,246 69,024
Impairment during the year ENBETIA
recognised in the profit HEHR
and loss account 4,000 24,000 — 28,000
Disposals B (1,621) (12,137) (503) (14,261)
At 31 December 2001 NWZEZE-F+-H=+—H 348,956 707,864 11,140 1,067,960
Net book value: BRI
At 31 December 2001 RIEE-HE+"A=+—H 257,049 351,448 10,780 619,277
At 31 December 2000 KRZEZEF+_H=1+—H 278,555 376,681 12,540 667,776
Note: Accumulated impairment losses are aggregated with WsF - BE M EBEREGH AR BT RREFTHBHE T
accumulated depreciation under the revised disclosure HENEEEHE  FERMBRENGE  maETEHEE
requirements of SSAP 17, as detailed in note 2 to the financial BEXAEBLRHREREREFFE LS - LAREE
statements, whereas previously they were disclosed as an HEMW BN -

adjustment to the cost and accumulated depreciation of the
assets. This change has been disclosed as a retrospective

reclassification.
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13. FXED ASSETS (continued)

All of the Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC. The
land on which the Group’s buildings are erected is held

on medium term leases.

At 31 December 2001, certain of the Group’s buildings
and machinery with a carrying value of approximately
RMB34,881,000 (2000: RMB31,400,000) were pledged
to secure certain short term bank loans granted to the
Group (note 30(a)).

At 31 December 2001, certain of the Group’s buildings
with cost of approximately RMB37,732,000 and
accumulated depreciation and impairment of
RMB31,463,000 were leased to third parties under
operating leases, the depreciation and impairment loss of
these fixed assets recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account during the year amounted to
RMB1,398,000 and RMB4,000,000, respectively, further
details of which are included in note 37(a) to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2001, certain of the Group’s plant,
machinery and equipment with cost of approximately
RMB61,791,000 and accumulated depreciation and
impairment of RMB53,581,000 were leased to third
parties under operating leases, the depreciation and
impairment loss of these fixed assets recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account during the year
amounted to RMB892,000 and RMB4,000,000,
respectively, further details of which are included in note

37(a) to the financial statements.
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13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Impairment during the year recognised in the profit and

loss account is summarised as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements 1 %5 5 28 ) &

31 December 2001
L

13, BEEZEE(#E)
RENEERBETRIAZBEMRNT -

RMB’000
ARBETIT

Notes

b &

First Tractor Qingjiang Tractor — 3B LI AL
Company Limited (“FTQT”) BRAFC —#ET ) (a) 20,000

Gear Factory 5 i L B (b) 18,200

Standard Component Factory ERELRE () 8,000

Others HoAl 1,800

48,000

Notes: izt -

(a)  Due to the continuing loss of FTQT, further impairment (a) HIR—HEITHEHEER  HRERE—FHEBEELER
provision had been made during the year to write down the B B EREREERTTREE - TTRIEISEEHE
fixed assers of FTQT 1o its recoverable amount. The recoverable BEFEL EEBFETEE -
amount is determined based on the net selling price which is
based on the scrap value of the assets.

(b)  Due to the continuing decline in the tracior market, the directors (b) HRERBTEREATR  HEMHEIEREE(FLAHTS
anticipate that certain machineries of Gear Factory (a factory H 1 —HREHE T RENGRIERERE - FREL T
owned by the Company) will be under long term idle condition, EHRELELMALRYEEEEFHEEER HEMBE
and accordingly, an impairment provision has been made to EIUIEIE - A B AERE T SR HTRE -
write down those fixed assets which do not have other use to its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined
based on the net selling price which is based on the scrap value
of the assets.

(¢c)  Due ro the continuing decline in the tractor market, certain (¢} HRENBTEEETE EESHEEEER TR Hh—

buildings, plant, machinery and equipment of Standard
Component Factory (a factory owned by the Company), have
been written down to recoverable amount. which is determined
based on its value in use. The discount rate used in determining

the value in use is 9% per annum.
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% AT H

14. CONSTRUCTION [N PROGRESS 6. ZEIE
Group Company
5 K57
2001 2001
e S
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTT ARBTT
Cost: A
At beginning of year £
As previously reported MAERTET 28R 63,468 56,074
Reclassified to accumulated impairment (note) BEHoEEREBE ) 10,135 8,864
As restated HIVIER 73,603 64,938
Additions b 59,926 46,929
Transfer to fixed assets (note 13) HMABTERE ([fTEE13) {63,951) {51,057)
Write-off fti #5 (1,495) (1,495)
At 31 December 2001 R_FEE-FFZAZ1+—H 68,083 59,315
Accumulated impairment: RETEE
At beginning of year 4]
As previously reported SR AT 2 5 — —
Reclassified from cost (note) femASREHTEMEE) 10,135 8,864
As restated EFHIE 10,135 8,864
Impairment during the vear FRHEETA
recognised in the profit and loss account E iR 411 —
Write-off of provision for impairment against cost i #5 B4R & B B HE 4 (1,495) (1,495)
At 31 December 2001 R-EE-H+_A=+—H 9,051 7,369
Net book value: BRHENFE ¢
At 31 December 2001 W_ZE-F+_A=+—H 59,032 51,946
At 31 December 2000 NZEEEEFH=+—H 63,468 56,074

Note: Accumulated impairment losses are separately disclosed under
the revised disclosure requirement of SSAP 17, as detailed in
note 2 to the financial statements, whereas previously they were
disclosed as an adjustment to the cost of the construction in
progress. This change has been disclosed as a retrospective
reclassification.
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GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, the Group
has adopted the transitional provision of SSAP 30 which
permits goodwill and negative goodwill in respect of
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 January 2001, to
remain eliminated against consolidated reserves or

credited to the capital reserve, respectively.

The amounts of goodwill and negative goodwill remaining
in consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisitions of
subsidiaries are RMB39,844,000 and RMB11,111,000,
respectively. All the amounts of goodwill and negative
goodwill are stated at cost.

Notes to Financial Statements [ % 2 B [7) 3

15.

31 December 2001
e A EV

EEREEE

WM BREM AL AEEERW G BHE
FIRIYTHRE - REREFFR _BZE-F—H—H
REECKEEERaHR NI FRESBR P EHK
ATAB A -

BRERBARFMELAT MY EREARBECHERREER
SR AR #39,844,0000C  ARBEIL,111,0000C - R K
EBBHABEIERENE -

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. WEQAHES

Company

ALE]
2001 2000
TEE-F “EEEH
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AEBTT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEHRE  HEA 255,246 239,551
Loans to subsidiaries ETHBAREN 102,000 —
Due from subsidiaries i NI 388,511 569,164
Due to subsidiaries JE {<F Wit Jg 2 & 200A (47,733) (41,003)
698,024 767,712
Provision for impairment BB Y (53,980) (32,499)
Provision for amount due from a subsidiary FE UL HT B A B e f (46,503) (26,505)
597,539 708,712
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The loans to subsidiaries, which are granted in the form
of designated deposits through certain banks in the PRC,
are unsecured, bear interest rate at 5.85% per annum and

are repayable within one year.

The balances due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
Included therein are amounts due from/to subsidiaries
aggregating RMB261,562,000 and RMB24,000,
respectively (2000: RMB436,215,000 and RMB207,000,
respectively) in respect of trading balances which,
although technically currently repayable under the
original terms of the transactions giving rise thereto, have
been deferred and are therefore classified as non-current.

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

18.

fEFHBRARCER RERPEE FRITURRERLZS
AEH - ZEEHRERAEHFEENRS%THL
ME » LER—FRNEE -

LM BARRERREN  AEREEEEX
H-ETHBAREREEESHATRZEY /FEATH
B E A S B A AR #261,562,0007C K A B #524,000
L(ZBEEF 251k AR#436,2150000 X A RE
207,0007C) - AWM LTS > KREARRBZEFTGRI
SEEFIEANREE BEEREHE  Fi kI
MENFE -

WRLABZHEMT

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
HftEL/ BE CETEER AL E AL
A B2 BB HiE/EfER EREn TEEE
Direct Indirect
ER M
Brilliance China Machinery Holdings Limited (“BCM”) Bermuda US$12.000 %01 - Investment holding
ERTHABERERERAR(CERER ) BEE 12,000%7% RALR
Yituo (Luoyang) Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. PRC /5$9.980,000 49 46 Manufacture and sale of tractors
and construction machinery
—# (&%) LESBRERLE T 9,980,000£ 7 EERBERNER
TREH
Yituo (Luoyang) Building Machinery Co., Ltd. PRC 549,930,000 49 46 Manufacture and sale of
road rollers and road
construction machinery
—H(BE EEREARLH hE 9,980,000£% EERHERRER
BEEERE
First Tractor Qingjiang Tractor PRC RMB80,000,000 51 — Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited * (“FTQT") tractors and related
parts and components
— BN EERAR(—EEL) hE AR%B80,000,0007 FERHEMURK
AHEHH
Luoyang Changlun Agricultural PRC RMB300,000 99 — Trading of tractors
Machinery Company Limited *
BERERFERERLE ] AR #500,0007C fHHES
First Tractor Shenyang Tractor PRC RMB27,000,000 60 — Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited * tractors
—EERENRERLT BB ARM27,000,0007 FERHERR
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. WELEERSE(E)
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name _ and operations share capital the Company activities
A/ B BRAEER  ALTEE
PEIEa REERE HE/EMER BRENL ITEEH
Direct Indirect
HE H#
Zhenjiang Huatong Aran PRC US51.000.000 — 532 Manufacture and sale of road
Machinery Company Limited construction machinery
HIERFRBHERLE i 1,000,000% 7% FERHEREDZEMSR
Zhenjiang Huachen Huatong Road PRC US$4,080,000 — 52 Manufacture and sale of
Machinery Company Limited road construction machinery
ALERERRERRERAT PE 4,080.000% 7% LERRERTRERR
Yituo (Luoyang) Harvester PRC RMB45,695,000 94— Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd.* agricultural harvesting machinery
— (B LEERERAE mE O ARH45,695,0000 FERHERZNERE
Yituo (Zhenjiang) Harvester PRC RMB11,984,400 — 607 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd * agricultural harvesting
machinery
— R HERRERL T hE AR#I11,984,400% FEREERZNEHEN
Guizhou Zhenning Biological PRC RMB 16,000,000 70 — Manufacture and sale of
Industrial Co., Lid.* biochernical products
EMEEEMIZERLE mE AR¥16.000,000% EERBELLER
Luoyang Changhong High Technology PRC RMB3,000,000 91.7 82 Trading of tractors
Trading Company Limited *
BEERREIEEARLT PE AR #3,000,0007C BREES
* The names of the PRC subsidiaries in English are the direct * FENEB AR ENATEEREP ML EEH

translation of their respective registered names in Chinese.
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17. [NTERESTAKVESTMEZNT M A JOINTLY- 17,
CONTROLLED ENTITY
Group Company
AEE A
2001 2000 2001 2000
“FF-F  CEFEE SFB-F CREEL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB®TT AR®TIT ARBTT ARRTX
Unlisted shares, at cost BB EHRE - — 25,000 25,000
Share of net assets LB ERE 29,388 28,688 — —
29,388 28,688 25,000 25,000
Goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves arising from ENERSENSEMELAMPE LR EBECHERZ
the acquisition of the jointly-controlled entity amounted BE-HF-F-HER+_H=+—HB AK%4,901,000
to RMB4,901,000 as at [ January and 31 December 2001. T B2 FETIR -
The amount of goodwill is stated at cost.
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: BeEfeZHBOT
Percentage of
Place of FiibE I
Business registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name structure  and operations interest power  sharing activities
catis XURR AMRCERE  FEERER  RER 2O TEEE
First Tractor Ningbo C.S.1. Tractor & Corporate PRC 40 40 40 Manufacture and sale of
Automobile Corp., Lid. tractors
—HERPREH BN ERARAE o g AERHERLR

The above investment in the jointly-controlled entity is
directly held by the Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements [ %5 5 2% 5 3k

31 December 2001
B e

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. BERXARER/EE

Group Company

AER /N
2001 2000 2001 2000
SEE-  CEEEN  C¥E-f YIS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARBTL AER¥TR
Unlisted shares, at cost JELmRDG EEA — — 42,000 42,000
Share of net assets FEIHEEFE — 14,788 — —
— 14,788 42,000 42,000
Provision for impairment BEER — — (42,000 (27.000)
— 14,788 — 15,000
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IBFE-FF A=A

18, JNTEZRESTS/NVESTMENTS (N ASSOCIA 18.
(continuad)
Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: FERELRZHMMT
Percentage
Place of  of ownership interest
Business registration attributable Principal
Name structure and operations to the Group activities
HiE RERE  EfMREERE AEEES TERHE
FrARERE DI
Direct Indirect
E# R #
Shanghai Qiangnong (Group) Company Limited Corporate PRC 39.6 — Trading of agricultural machinery
TERR(EERIERLE o g REBHES
Shanghai Qiangnong Group Corporate PRC — 2574 Trading of agricultural machinery
Agricultural Machinery Co., Lid. and electrical equipment
CHEREEERERFARLH k% HE EEBMAETRER S
Shanghai Agricultural Resources Corporate PRC — 25.74 Trading of agriculturai
Trading Centre Co., Ltd. machinery and electrical equipment
LERAVEE ST LERLH % fE RESBEETREES
- Shanghai Shennong Automobiles Services Co., Ltd. Corporate PRC — 31.68  Provision of transportation services
LERERERBERLH (3¢ hE 2R
Shanghai Shangnong Property Development Company Corporate PRC — 39.6 Property development
LEMERREEREAF tx hE mERS
The names of the above PRC associates in English are the direct translation HDEZ B EARZEX LRI IHE P MEEE EHET -
of their respeciive registered names in Chinese.
The table above lists the associates of the Group which, FEyISEEME RN A EEENEBEEAS SR
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the REESEEZEERS v AEERBS AT - FEMTE
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the ST HMEESATEHAERTE -

net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.
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79. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 18, RBRSE
Group Company
FER AL
2001 2000 2001 2000
“%%-% "2EIF "¥I-F "2TEL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTL ARBTT ARETR
Unlisted equity investments, FLmERERE
at fair value BEAFEE 91,608 48,608 55,303 25,303
Note: As at 31 December 2001, the Group’s long term investments i ROFE—F A=+ —H FAEEZRERETUELRBA
included an amount of RMB30 million (2000: RMB20 million) B 130,000,000 ( —BFBE A K #20,000,0007C ) 7 B —
investment in China Yituo Group Finance Limited Company HEBHEEREFLAT(THE—HEYHE,)  FREGPE—
(“China Yituo Finance”), which representing 9.68% of the B BHMELL9.68% - PE—BYBETFRAFZ —RHTE
registered capital of China Yituo Finance. China Yituo Finance AT
is a subsidiary of the Holding.
20. INVENTORIES 20. &
Group Company
FEE AL
2001 2000 2001 2000
“g3-F -E%FF _%F-F _IIEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BTT ARBTE ARETZ
Raw materials FH R 130,445 112,880 60,853 65,648
Work in progress R 143,075 156,863 66,900 71,420
Finished goods B 235,457 269,522 52,878 67921
Spare parts and consumables i RIKESES 50,478 59,773 45,520 53,294
539,455 599,038 226,151 258,283

WIZEE—E+-H=+—H  LhERaEEREEUT
BB ESRZ FEHARS.600,00T( ZEBEFE :
A E#9.000,0007T) -

At 31 December 2001, the carrying amount of inventories
of the Group carried at net realisable value included in
the above balance was approximately RMB&.6 million

(2000: RMB9.0 million).
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21.
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly FEEHEFCEGFBELUGERAET NEF KT
on credit, where payment in advance for customers is EHNFE - ERCEEH-RE=TZEN1TH - KEE
normally required. The credit periods to its customers B e B R B B
are 30 to 90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables.
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at PEEE ERZEHRNBRERR ERRS R ERE
the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, and net of BRESFOT
provisions, is as follows:
Group Company
AEE LN/
2001 2000 2001 2000
“EE-% CFETF CET-F CI%EF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTLT AREBTT ARBTT ARETL
Within 90 days 90K LI 238,195 261,766 57,429 32,368
91 days to 180 days 912 180K 53,960 103,326 14,618 11,038
181 days to 365 days 181E 365K 72,625 58,690 13,393 21,191
1 to 2 years 1824 48,666 61,121 10,548 14,134
Over 2 years 2EL & 10,143 2516 1,708 2,021
423,589 487,419 97,696 80,752
OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EUEEER
Group Company
rEE /N
Notes 2001 2000 2001 2000
WE  CEE-%F  C¥%IF  C¥T-F CFEIH
RMB'000 RMB'G00 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETLT ARBTL ARBTL AR¥TE
Prepayments, deposits HEMRE
and other debtors HE R EMEER 98,622 92,576 40,219 44,541
Prepaid income tax HITHERH 3,757 — — —
Due from related companies A P NEIE 23 3,899 10,896 3,315 3,315
Due from the Holding YR A RIFUR 24 21,753 — 21,521 —
128,031 103,472 65,055 47,856




23.

24,

25.

DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due from/to related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

DUE FROM/TO THE HOLDING

Except for a balance of approximately RMBS5.7 million
(2000: RMB 106 million) due to the Holding which bears
interest at 6.435% per annum (2000: interest rates ranging
from 5.58% to 6.65% per annum), all of the other balances
due from/to the Holding are interest-free. All of the
balances with the Holding are unsecured and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Notes to Financial Statements [ %5 &1 2% [ &k

23 BR/BNHELTSEE

31 December 2001

g% FIAZ A

PRI/ TE (S B 2 ] 5O B R - B R E T

3 -

24, Bl/ERE
BT —

EN/\

ERUENARBS0ET(ZEZZE - AR¥ 106

BILOMEMERARZEREFNESH ZEEE
RS S8DE6.65%) TR FiEHM BN

FHRAANE
S0 PO S A -

25, BIHERE

SESBEE o R EERAFANERTSRE

Group Company
KEH KL
2001 2000 2001 2000
“ET-F  CETIE CFT-F CFEIF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL AR®TT ARETT AR¥TT
Listed government bonds, EEERESR
at market value - PRC i E—E 50,000 100,000 50,000 100,000
Listed equity securities, b EEy
at market value: i
Hong Kong T - 9,640 - —
PRC th 2,264 — — —
Other investment,
at market value (note) Hitndzd > EHEHEE 30,000 — 30,000 —
82,264 109,640 80,000 100,000

Note:

On 23 July 2001, the Company entered into a designated

investment agreement with an investment management company

whereby the larter agreed to invest an amount of
RMB30,000,000, on behalf of the Company, on short term
investment portfolios comprising listed securities, government

bonds and various funds in the PRC. The agreement was for a
period of approximately 12 months, from 27 July 2001 to 22
July 2002.
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28,

27.

CASK AND CASX ZQUIVALENTS AND 26. &
PLEDGED DERPOSITS
Group Company
AERE ALNE
2001 2000 2001 2000
“EE-F “BETE ZTIT-F “EEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTR ARBTE ARETE ARETR
Cash and bank balances HERBTER 266,604 333,261 126,416 173,301
Time deposits EHER 646,750 634,024 531,614 473,871
913,354 967285 658,030 647,172
Less: Deposits pledged W RMERTEEEER
for bank facilities iR A (23,302) — (16.446) —
Cash and cash equivalents HeRE4EEY 890,052 967,285 641,584 647.172
TRADZE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. BRGERETESR
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables as at the REEH ZRBFEZEMRIRENERRRS NN
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: T
Group Company
FEE ARE
2001 2000 2001 2000
“EF-F  CTEFE  CEF-F FEIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIL AR®TE ARBTRT ARETX
Within 90 days ORLIA 207,128 263,210 129,102 154,902
91 days to 180 days 9IF 180K 74,711 46,563 40,673 34,477
181 days to 365 days 181E 365K 38,860 47,686 25,490 31,670
1102 years 1E25% 30,875 24,950 14,366 14,168
Over 2 years 2Lk 21,680 20,916 11,801 11,469
373,254 403,325 221,432 246,686

The Group’s bills payables amounting to approximately
RMB44,020,000 (2000: Nil) are secured by the pledge of
certain of the Group’s deposits amounting to
approximately RMB23,302,000 (2000: Nil).
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. BEBEREEHEN
Group Company
A& /N

Notes 2001 2000 2001 2000

BT ek ZEE-F ZZZEF ZE-F _ETEF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETRT  ARETRT AR®TRT ARETX

Accruals and other liabilities EEtEEREMERE 253,411 234,300 127,483 125,825

Provision for product warranties EEREER 29 4,202 4,702 2,202 2,202

Due to related companies I A+ Bl SR 4 ) 2 0E 23 14,612 4,588 — —

Due to the Holding JEft Pl 2 B 50R 24 7,894 119,773 — 10,892

280,119 363,863 129,687 138,919

PROVISION FOR PRODUCT WARRANTIES 20, BRBRELESE

Group Company

AEE PN

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARBTTT

At beginning of year ) 4,702 2,202
Additional provision K8 N HE ff 3,189 1,132
Amounts utilised during the year EREREE (3,689) (1,132)
At 31 December 2001 RIBEE-F+ZH=Z1+—H 4,202 2,202

The Group provides one-year warranties to its customers
on certain of its tractors and components sold, under
which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The
amount of the provision for product warranties is
calculated based on the unit rate charged by repair centres
and the estimated number of units of tractors and
components already sold which may require repairs and
maintenance. The estimation basis is reviewed on an

ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
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30. (NTEREST-BEARNG BANK AND QTHZR 30
LOANS
Group Company
rEE AL
2001 2000 2001 2000
“EF-—F  C%TEE  CFFTF CFEEX
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL AERBTILE AR®Tr AR¥Tx
Bank loans: BITEN
Secured HHEH 74,420 25,650 — —
Unsecured SR 153,140 143,220 25,000 25,000
227,560 168,870 25,000 25,000
Unsecured other loans EEFHEMER 29,500 49,959 - —
257,060 218,329 25,000 25,000
Bank loans repayable: FEFE PRI M BB RITER
Within one year —FE R 221,560 144,080 25,000 20,000
In the second year & ZE N EIH — 24,790 — 5,000
227,560 168,870 25,000 25,000
Other loans repayable: BETIHEEAEEZEMEN
Within one year —FEAEE 29,500 49,959 — —
257,060 218.829 25,000 25,000
Portion classified as TERE
current liabilities BENHR (257,060) (194,039) (25,000) (20,000)
Long term portion b=3:CRigh - 24,790 — 5,000
(&)  At31 December 2001, certain of the Group’s bank loans ) PEZE-H+"-A=Z+—-0 REEETFHETER

of RMB74.420,000 (2000: RMB25,650,000) are secured
by the Group’s certain buildings and machinery with an
aggregate net carrying value of approximately
RMB34,881,000 (2000: RMB31,400,000),

In addition, the Holding has guaranteed certain of
the Group’s bank and other loans up to
RMB34,700,000 and RMB200,000, respectively
(2000: RMB40,000,000 and RMB36,177,000,

respectively) as at the balance sheet date.
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30.

31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (continued)

)

Other loans are unsecured and bear interest at rates

ranging from 5.85% to 8.4% (2000: 6.44% to
9.72%) per annum.

DEFERRED TAX

Notes to Financial Statements [ % 53 2 I 3t
31 December 2001
ZEE A

30.

WEHNELRTERIIEERILD

(b) HMEFIREEN  HEFRS$2E4%( %

BEFE 6449 2%) A -

3. BERE

Group and Company

AEEAALE
2001 2000
ZEEE “BEEHE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT N
At beginning of year £9) 3,702 6,170
Credit for the year (note 10) FEREDHE10) (2.468) (2,468)
At 31 December wt+_A=+—H 1,234 3,702

The deferred tax of the Group and the Company is made
in respect of the difference in income recognition for

accounting and tax purposes regarding interest income

arising from the over-subscription monies of the H shares
proceeds received in 1997.
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32. SFHARE CAPITAL 32. BT

Company

ALH]
2001 2000
e ~EEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTTT

Registered, issued and fully paid: Fft - ERTHEECRE

State-owned legal person shares of RMB1.00 each ~ BRHEARBI00TZEEEAR 450,000 450,000
H shares of RMB1.00 each BREEAREIO0TZHE 335,000 335,000
785,000 785,000
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33. RESERVES 33. ER

Statutory Retained

Statutory public Enterprise profits/

Share common welfare Reserve expansion Capital  (accumulated
premium reserve fund fund fund reserve losses) Total

EERE BRLE/
Group rEE FELH  FELHE  EELEE HEER ¢ Wik (GEER &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ABETR  ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR ARETIR ARETL  ARETE  ARETR

At} Jauary 2000 RZZEEF-H-H 1,378,840 56,402 S6.402 564 320 95 119,830 1,612,453
Net loss for the year AEGEBEH — — - - - - (157,053) (157,053)
Transfer from/(to) reserves BR/ (BT ER - 1,767 1,767 - - - (3.53) -
Goodwill writien off on RIE D EIRH

acquisition of minority interests BERBBEIBE - — - — — 95) {14,174} (14,269)
At 31 December 2000 W_EEEF+-A=+-H

and beginning of vear REMES 1,378,840 58,169 58,169 564 0 - (34.931) 1441031
Net loss for the year AEBEEE - — — - - - (117,799) (117,799}
Transfer from/(1o) reserves BE/(BE)EE - 409 409 70 0 - (1.358) -
At 31 December 2001 RZBE-EF-AZF-H 1578840 58,578 58,578 834 590 — (174.088) 132333
Reserves getained by: EERER
Company and its subsidiaries RAARENBAR 1,378,840 58,578 58,578 834 590 - (141,377) 1,356,043
Jointly-controlled entity BAEHLE - - -~ - — — 9.289 4289
Associates BE0E — — - — - - (42,000) (42.000)
31 December 2001 RZZZ-F+TAZ+-H 1378840 58,578 58,578 834 590 - (174,088) 1323332
Reserves retained by: BElEEER
Company and its subsidiaries AAARAMBAR 1,378,840 38,169 58,169 564 320 - (36,308) 1,459,754
Jointly-controlled entity BAmEGE — — - — — — 8389 8,589
Associates BEnd - — - - — — (21.212) 21.212)
31 December 2000 RZBEEEFZAZ+-0 1378840 38,169 58,169 564 320 - (54931) 1 441,431
Certain amounts of goodwill and negative goodwill HKERBAR RRSENCEmELE CETHERAN
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and a jointly- BYE > SHRFNESEESEEREPIR I AZRR
controlled entity remain eliminated against consolidated B HEBERABHREWFEISKRLT

retained profits and credited to the capital reserve,
respectively, as explained in notes 15 and 17 to the

financial statements.
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RESERVES (continued) 33. BGE(E)
Statutory Retained
Statutory public profits/
Share common welfare {accumulated
premiuvm reserve fund losses) Total
BN/
Company EN/ANEE EANE BELNEE RELHE (REEHR) =E1
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TRT ARETT AR%TLT ARETE
At | January 2000 RZEZZE—-F—H 1,378,840 48,388 48,388 101,260 1,576,876
Net loss for the year KEHEFE — — — (147,310 (147,310
At 31 December 2000 RoEEEESZAZ+—H
and beginning of year REN 1,378,840 48,388 43,388 (46,050) 1,429,566
Net loss for the year KEEBRSE — — — (115,922) {115,922)
At 31 December 2001 RIEE—-F+-HA=+—H 1,378,840 48,388 48,388 (161,972) 1,313,644

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the Company’s articles of association, the Company is
required to appropriate 10% and 5% to 10% of its annual
statutory profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC accounting standards and regulations, to a
statutory common reserve (“SCR”) and a statutory public
welfare fund (“PWF”), respectively. No allocation to the
SCR is required after the balance of the Company’s SCR
reaches 50% of its registered capital.

The SCR may only be used to offset accumulated losses,
to expand the production operations of the Company, or
to increase its paid-up capital.

The PWF is used for the collective welfare of the staff
and workers of the Company.

No transfer to SCR and PWF has been proposed by the
directors because the Company incurred a loss during
the year.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had not utilised
any SCR and PWF.
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33.

RESERVES (continued)

During the year, the subsidiaries’ aggregate
appropriations to each of the SCR, PWF, reserve fund
and enterprise expansion fund, as dealt with in the Group’s
financial statements, were RMB0.41 million (2000:
RMB1.77 million), RMBO0.41 million (2000: RMB1.77
million), RMB0.27 million (2000: Nil) and RMBO0.27
million (2000: Nil), respectively. The appropriations to
certain of the reserves are subject to approval by the
board of directors of the respective subsidiaries, and the
recently issued SSAP 9 (revised) requires that
appropriations subject to approval subsequent to balance
sheet date should not be recognised in the balance sheet.
However, appropriation subject to subsequent approval
already recognised in the balance sheet has not been

reversed because the amount thereof is immaterial.

As at 31 December 2001, the Company had no retained
profits (2000: Nil) available for distribution by way of
cash or in kind.

As at 31 December 2001, in accordance with the Company
Law of the PRC, an amount of approximately RMB1.38
billion (2000: RMB1.38 billion) standing to the credit of
the Company’s share premium account was available for
distribution by way of future capitalisation issues.
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33. BEHE(E)

RER MBAFABELAHS  LUe  REESREXE
BERESMIAAEAMBERECBUTNBARE
410,000 (ZEFEFE - AR¥ 1,770,0000L) - AR®
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 34,
FLOW STATEMENT
(a) Reconciliation of loss from operating (a) %“‘”‘Sﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁgﬁi REBEBIBEHESHRA S
activities to net cash inflow/(cutflow) (Frd) &
from operating activities
2001 2000
ZEZ-F _EXEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEET T ARBETIL

Loss from operating activities BEEBEER (63,481) (119,887)
Interest income FIEUWA (32,523) (27,927)
Investment income from short term listed investments HE LW mERA (7,400) —
Gain on disposal of short term listed investments HESHEHREZNR (1,715) {3,000)
Dividend income from long term unlisted investments EHE ERECRERA (1,250) —
Unrealised loss on changes in fair values of S EHRELATFERES

short term listed investments ZRBHER 644 —
Depreciation mneE 86.041 97,929
Impairment of construction in progress FRIBEE 411 10,135
Impairment of fixed assets EELERE 48,000 29,733
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEERE 1,590 1,874
Decrease in inventories FERY 45,383 15,853
Provision/(reversal of provision) for obsolete inventories ~ FREFEHEM / (EMHED) (5,800) 16,600
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables BHERARERERE DY,/ (8m) 40,844 (17,889}
Provision for bad and doubtful debts xfﬁgﬁ/ﬁ{lﬂ 22,986 64,651
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other debtors BNHOE - REe REMEREIEM (6,046) (5,196)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts Fgﬂﬁﬁaﬁ Gl

due from related companies FOAERAY /(I 6,997 (4,960)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from the Holding Fgﬂﬁlrﬁx NEIFIERD /() (21,753) 106,378
Decrease in trade and bills payables TR REMEBEY (30,071 (71.213)
Increase in accruals and other liabilities ﬁ%ﬁ&iﬂﬁf@ﬁ gLy 18,611 19,168
Product warranties provision movement, net ELFHEREEESHE (500) (2,000)
Increase in amounts due to related companies JE A R 2 I ZXE I i © 10,024 2,714
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to the Holding FEfT R AR EKIERE N (BA) (111,879} 12,995
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities WBZBEZFHSHEA/GEE) (6,887) 125,960
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH . GEEERBERNE(E)
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during (by FEREBEEEIHSNT
the year

Issued capital

(including
share Bank and Minority
premium) other loans interests
CRITRA
(AEEALE) RTRAMER DY AR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFIL ARBTL ARETT
At 1 January 2000 H_EEEF—-H—-H 2,163,840 197,970 195,409
Cash inflow from financing activities, net ~ EEEHZFHLHA - 20,859 -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries WERBARMES - - 11,993
Share of loss after tax of subsidiaries FEEHEAFIRBEER - - (24,145)
Dividends paid to minerity shareholders P UERCRE — - (2245)
Minority interests acquired FEEAZ VYR RS - - {115,084)
At 31 December 2000 and WoEEEE+F-H=4+—H
beginning of year REH 2,163,840 218,829 65,930
Cash inflow from financing activities, net ~ ZEEFHFHEWA - 38,231 —
Share of profit after tax of subsidiaries BN RELARB R - — 3,406
Dividends paid to minority shareholders I SERRIRE -~ - (3.289)
At 31 December 2001 RZEE-E+-HZ+—H 2,163,340 257,060 66,047
(¢) Acquisition of subsidiaries (c) WAHERHES T
2001 2000
“EE-F “EEEH
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT
Net assets acquired: BECHERME:
Fixed assets BEEE — 8,590
Cash and bank balances HERBETER . 48,990
Prepayments, deposits and other debtors HTEE - e RAMER — 182
Inventories HE — 1,435
Trade and bills payables FEfTUR R B T 2% — (1,212)
Minority interests YEREER - (11,995)
— 45,990
Satisfied by: X HE
Cash kS — 45,990

99




0 7 Fa
Notes to Financial Statements B 5 2828 1 &
31 December 2001
IRF-FEFF=+—H
34, NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED = ., B8
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(¢) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (c)

For the year ended 31 December 2000, the
subsidiaries acquired contributed RMB9,081,000
to the Group’s net operating cash outflows, received
RMB157,000 in respect of the net returns on
investments and servicing of finance, no payment
was made in respect of tax, utilised RMB6,758,000

for investing activities and no contribution was

made for financing activities.

Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the acquisition of

subsidiaries is as follows:

gﬂ&rg‘a‘?”\f}
“%. JIN]

S =
Rk ()

W =] (F)

AEEREE _ZEEFT_A=T—HILEEEA
W%’&E%%}\E #9,081,0000C 2 & EH & F RN
° ?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ&%@%ﬁ%MUJ\E*ﬁzlswooﬁ: ’
(xﬁﬁﬁmléﬁﬁﬁﬁ CHREEHHHARY
&Bm%m&&ﬁﬁ%éﬁ@ﬁxﬁﬁ%§°

BB AR HERREFEMFERASFAT

2001 2000

“EE-F TEERE

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREETTT AEETTT

Cash and bank balances acquired BERSRETER — 48,990

Cash consideration RERE — (45,990)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in WEHEA R CES

respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries KRESEEDFRA — 3,000

The subsidiaries acquired in the prior year
contributed RMB14,588,000 to the Group’s
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2000.

The post-acquisition losses before minority interests

dealt with in the Company’s consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2000 in

respect of subsidiaries acquired amounted to

RMB3.5 million.
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35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 4. REFESRERER(H)
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(d) Acquisition of minority interests (d) WBED B RRE L
2001 2000
e ~EREF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETIT
Net assets acquired: BECZBEEERE
Minority interests DB R — 115,084
Goodwill arising on acquisition s L B R AR
of minority interests EEIEE — 14,269
— 129,353
Satisfied by: XA
Cash W& — 129,353
RETIREMENT BENEFITS 35. BHEN
The Company participates in the central retirement and AREE2MHBETHNERZPRERRKEHH -
pension fund scheme organised by the Luoyang Municipal Bt AAEHEREIBF TERENS%( —EET
Government and makes an annual contribution B 255%E28%) ER#E - §EILBRKE > FrERKE
representing 28% (2000: 25.5% to 28%) of the total T TERZERERIM -
annual wages of its employees to the aforesaid retirement
and pension fund, out of which the pensions of the
Company’s retired employees are paid.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. HAEE

As at 31 December 2001, the Company had given
corporate guarantees of approximately RMB151.3 million
(2000: RMB20.0 million) to certain banks and a financial
institution in connection with facilities granted to a
subsidiary. The facilities were utilised to the extent of
approximately RMB96.3 million (2000: RMB20.0
million). Such contingent liabilities were not provided in
the Company’s financial statements.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Group, nor the Company

had any significant contingent liabilities.
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37,

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

(2)

The Company leases certain of its buildings and
machinery (note 13 to the financial statements)
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
buildings and machinery are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to five years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 December 2001, the Group and the Company
had total future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants

falling due as follows:

37.

BETRE
B RLA

ALARBEERNTHLEETEE REEY (M
BRI - BEREEY  URBHIHENS
BE-ERFHIETE - BOCES—BRIAHEEEX
fE TRATHETERREHEHE -

(a)

RZBZ-F+_A=+—0 ARERAXFRE
TYUAREE - EEERR] AL EAmR
RN & B EFEEENT

Group and Company

FEEMALH
2001 2000
“EE-F ZEEZHF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AERBTR
Within one year —&H 3,111 —
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERELF(EEMHSEEEA) 10,560 -
13,671 —
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)
(b) As leasee

The Group leases certain land, buildings, plant and
machinery under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for land and buildings are negofiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 50 years, and those for
plant and machinery for terms of one year with
renewal options.

At 31 December 2001, the Group and the Company
had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

D |
Notes to Financial Statements ¥ 57 #8128 1 &

3] December 2001
—EBE-F+I/AZAHH

BELNEE(HE)

(b) {EREMA

ALERBEEROZ ARSI - BRAERE
Y BB RS - DR EREREYCHNE -2
ATECHEE > MEE RS CHN RS

RIBE-F+IZAZ+—R  AEERALERE
AT SIEAR R A AT E MR R
RIEHETERBNOT

follows:
Group Company
AEE Z NN
2001 2000 2001 2000
“EE-% TZETHE EZ-F _“ZEEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  AR®TLT AR®TRLT AR®TE
(Restated) (Restated)
(EHHER) (EFIIR)
Within one year —FR 12,299 21,385 10,000 6,750
In the second to fifth years, E_EERF
inclusive (REMFEREER) 37744 84,454 31,740 20,000
After five years LER 228,389 269,126 201,794 206,795
278432 374,965 243,534 233,545

SSAP 14 (Revised), which was adopted during the year,
requires lessors under operating leases to disclose the
total future minimum operating lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases, as detailed in note (a)
above. This disclosure was not previously required. SSAP
14 (Revised) also requires lessees under operating leases
to disclose the total future minimum operating lease
payments, rather than only the payments to be made
during the next year as was previously required.
Accordingly, the prior year comparative amounts for
operating leases as Iessee in note (b) above have been
restated to accord with the current year’s presentation.
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In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 37(b) above, the Group and the Company had the

following capital commitments at the balance sheet date:

CAPITAL COMMITHMENTS 38.

g
"
J

t.
S
e

s
it
il
WA

BRI X0 L R EHERES  ARERAL
ARHEEERUTEAKE

Group Company
KEE ALE
2001 2000 2001 2000
“g%-% "E%FF  "2F-F -FITF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TET ARETRT AR®BTL
Capital commitments in respect BERERL
of plant and machinery: ERRE
Contracted for BEN 19,241 27,479 17,213 20,160
Authorised, but not contracted for CHEEREN — 18,500 — 18,500
Capital commitments in respect BA-BEAEIRE
of purchase of equity interest LERRE:
in an associate:
Contracted for S ] 12,415 — — —
Capital commitments in respect A BARESN TS
of additional capital contribution ZEARE:
into subsidiaries:
Authorised, but not contracted for EfEEREN 174,075 15,695 174,075 15,695
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39. RELATEDR PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEALRS
(a) The significant transactions carried out between the () FEE > FEEHRERAFREE BEEERLFZH
Group and the Holding group, inclusive of BLEABEARMNEARRZMT -

subsidiaries and associates of the Holding, during
the year are summarised as follows:

Notes 2001 2000
B x TEZ-E —ZEZZTE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETIL AREETT
Sales of raw materials and components HERMEREHE 1) 100,766 125,631
Purchases of raw materials and components [ Z R A K R B4 14 () 172,151 191,535
Purchases of utilities XENE (ii) 57,054 56,510
Fees paid for welfare and support services Xt EA kR REE (iii) 38,507 44,677
Purchases of transportation services T ERE (iii) 3,569 9,188
Research and development expenses paid TN ERFEEER (iv) 2,308 2,600
Fees paid for the use of land Xff L E (v) 5,000 5,000
Fees paid for the use of trademark TN EEE {(vi) 2,308 2,600
Rentals paid in respect of: TAMEE

Buildings &Y (vii) 2,143 1,763
Plant and machinery B R {vii) 2,657 5,000
Fees paid for agency services IARHEREE (viii) 989 -

(b) The significant transactions carried out between (b) REF-HEIREVEBREZEAXIUT :

FTQT and its minority shareholder during the year
are summarised as follows:

Notes 2001 2000
fi &k “EE-F “EEEZHF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
Sales of raw materials and components HERME RZELHE 6] 2,557 4,854
Purchases of raw materials and components BERME RELE (i) 11,719 18,417
Sales of utilities I B B (ii) 1,529 1,542

185




) U Q‘
Notes to Finzncial Statements W2 H R E
31 December 2001
IREF F{HZAZF-H
38, RELATZD PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. HUOAZ=ZZ(E)
(continued)
Notes: Hi&
(i} Pursuant o relevant agreements, the pricing in respect (i) RBERGE BEHHRESEZ B EEHIER
of raw materials and components is determined by ThEEEREE(HIREFTE RS ECIEEERE

E - WEFEMHREER L RERER AR HERK
GEEBRECERE WGERTBEEL—EES
HmMLETPEISEYESHAEL BE -

reference to the state price (i.e., mandatory prices set in
accordance with relevant PRC regulations, where
applicable), or if there is no applicable state price for
any such raw materials or components, the market price
or the agreed price which is not exceeding the price
charged in the immediate preceding year increased by
a percentage equal to certain PRC consumer price index,

whichever is lower.

{ii)  Pursuant to relevant agreements, the pricing in respect (i) WRBEHEBE BHZERK FRAZEHTHEEE
FEBEHRBFEEHAEECEBEE WEF

of utilities is determined by reference to the state price

(i.e., mandatory prices set in accordance with relevant
PRC regulations, where applicable), or if there is no
applicable state price for any such services, the market
price or the agreed price which is not exceeding the
price charged in the immediate preceding year increased
by a percentage equal to certain PRC consumer price
index, whichever is lower.

Pursuant to relevant agreements, the pricing in respect
of each of the welfare and supporting services and
transportation services is determined by reference to
the state price (i.e., mandatory prices set in accordance
with relevant PRC regulations, where applicable), or if
there is no applicable state price for any such services,
the market price or the agreed price which is not
exceeding the price charged in the immediate preceding
vear increased by a percentage equal to certain PRC
consumer price index, whichever is lower.

Pursuant to relevant agreements, the pricing in respect
of routine research and development services is
calculared atr a rate of 0.2% (2000: 0.2%) of the
Company's net annual turnover.

(iii)

(iv)

RELERRER AATEXBEBEFEEKE
H MBEETRES L—FEBANLETPENE
YIEEHTEHE -

REFHGH BARRIRBEHEGREZES #
BREH T 2EBFEEAREHERRE
EEBIEE  WEERELRERFZER RABTHELE
EEREEBEL MEEETHEEL—FEEE
W LEF BB E S BE -

REARGE AEWERABREZ CEERAL
R EEREIFE02%( “FEEFE 02%)5 5 -

Pursuant to relevant agreements, the annual rental for v) WREFHEGES EHLHZ2ERRREARES 000000
the use of land is RMBS million (2000: RMBS million) T(ZBEZEF - ARKS5000000T)  BRIEEHZEG
subject to a further land rental adjustment announced THEEREMAB L HEE -

by the relevant state land administration authorities.

Pursuant to relevant agreements, the pricing for the use (vi) RBEHGE BIEEFNEBERLESFESEPE
of the trademark is charged at a rate of 0.2% (2000: B902%( ZBEBE 02%)5E -

0.2%) of the Company’s net annual turnover.

Pursuant to relevant agreements, the rental of buildings (vii) RIBEMGE EIVRESEZESHEERRERR
and plant and machinery is charged with reference to BEZIENE -

the depreciation of relevant assets.

Pursuant to relevant agreements, the pricing of agency (viii) WBEHEGE REBFEBEHEEREAEHESS

fees is based on certain percentages of the invoiced
value of goods sold through the agent.

CREEZETHEALHE -




39.

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(¢) Further details of the balances with related parties
are set out in notes 23 and 24 to the financial
statements.

(d) At the balance sheet date, the Holding guaranteed

certain bank loans and other loans made to the
Group up to RMB34.7 million (2000: RMB40.0
million) and RMBO0.2 million (2000: RMB36.2
million), respectively, as further detailed in note

30 to the financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 21 November 2001, Brilliance China Machinery
Holdings Limited (“BCM™), a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an acquisition agreement with a foreign
independent third party, for the acquisition of the 25%
shareholding of Yituo (Luoyang) Diesel Company Ltd.
(“YLDC”) from that foreign party for a cash consideration
of USD1.5 million. YLDC is a Sino-foreign equity joint
venture company incorporated in the PRC with registered
capital of USD6.0 million, of which the Holding held a
75% equity interest. YLDC is engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of diesel engines and ancillary
products. The relevant approval documents had been
issued by the government authorities in March 2002.
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31 December 2001
ZRF—+IAZ4 0

BEAZZZ(#)

BRI £ Z R —
2324

(©) FEBEER AN B RR A

REEH  ERAFARETRFARECRTERR
HEHihEREHREE S FEAR#34,700,000 (=&
EETE © ARK%40,000,0007C) B A B #200,0007T(Z
BEEEE  ARN36,200,0007T) CIEF  FERY
ESE BRI

%ﬁ{allflx

ZEE-EF—AZ4—H  ARRZHBLREERD
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HEERAE (T — 4 m%ﬂ%%Zkﬁo—# By
RoEFREICHIEGERENTE  HEMEALAR
6,000,0003 7T - ﬁﬁ%%&%ﬁ#ﬂ“?ﬁﬁo—f 33
BRELRT SERBELHEREZE S - HMBUTE
BERZZEZE_HF=-F &R GMAHE -




Notes to Firancial Statements % % 528 [ &
31 December 2001
TEE-F IR0

41,

&2,

COMPARATVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of certain new and revised SSAPs
during the current year, the accounting freatment and
presentation of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s

presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 April 2002,

188

41,

42,

)

B

gk

Pecs

AN R R AR - AR T
RGETEHEHEN  RUBRRCETHAREHRZ
FHRENERERIACRER UFEHAE - B
I EFRBBECEFSE  UNEAERZERS
# .

HEGR -BEHIA SN BB R R R AR
Wk




A
¥

’ * ‘ mal'kets ¢ Hong Kong iMail Monday, April 29, 2002
— oo s

NOTICES .

FIRST TRACTOR COMPANY LIMITED
E—mRABROAERA S

4. Loss trom operating actlvilies
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The Group's Inss rren nperating activities s anivad Al alter charging/(cadining)
2001 2000
Turnover : RMB1,663,824,000 3 . AMB 000 AAB 000
MNet Loss : RMB117,799,000 Depreciation of lixad assats 86,041 a7,920
Interest incore . {32.57%) (27,927}
Loss Per Share : AMB15.01 cents Profi trom sundry sales (880) @21
Rental income (2.220) -
The board of direclors {the “Directors”) of First Tractor Company Limited (ihe “Company™) announced the Tiagemark licence fee . (10,3200 -
audited consotidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group™) for the year {nvesiment 'Ntmlmr lvr:m short |:91m listad investments (7.400) om
ended 31 December 2001. which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles g“";””d"‘sm“ l"'“'?" ""'": 's'""l’. "“V”s"“:""’ . ‘:';'5’ (3.000)
generally accepled in Hong Kong. logelher with 2000 comparative ligures. set oyl {unless otherwise ivideng income ltom lang term unlisted invastments {1.250) =
stated. the ligures contained in this announcement are denominaled in Renminbi) as (oilows: 5. Tox
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT . 1”:010 M&"{:;’
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONQ ACCOUNTING STANDARDS) e
The Campany and sulisidiarien
Yonr ended 31 Dacembor PRC Iniame G pravided tor tho year 18,174 15417
2001 2000 DOnlorrod Jay [2.46R) 174Ky
Notes RAMB'000 RMB 000 . 16,656 17 014
Turnover (3) 1,863,824 1,997,314 Shase of 1ax atihutable 1o
Jointly-ronirotiad catrly 120 108
Cost ot sales (1.625.739) (1,738,817) Associlon - i
Gross nmti 238.085 258,497 Tar chargn Ior the yaar 16,776 12 442
hy
(SD‘x’H_ev re:enue and gamns 99.697 54,093 o provision 101 Moty Kong proiis 1« has besn made as the Gioup hart np assessable prokts earnnd m or denyort
“ar:""gs"";?:;“‘;?opr‘;“ rz(?(gsg;g; . z:g?,i;i; i Hong Kong during the twn yoars endsd 31 Dacainber 2001
Ciher operating eurlye\n‘s.ns -(951505) (\381628) The PRC income 1ar lor the Company and s subsidiaties is calculated at rates angng fiom 12% 10 33% 12079 1,
10 33%). on their eslimaled assessabie prolits Ini the year based on ansling lagislation, nterpretations and peachnes
Loss iom operating actwitics (4} (63.481) (119,887) n mspec! therent
Finance cosis (20,168) (19.627) Prolits tax nf Ihe sutsifary onetaling amsire tha PRC 18 subject 1o the 1ate apnhcahle i ds pnsdwtinn
Share of pmlils less tosses nl: T PRC incomme tar ol the associing ang jomtlv-continited ennly 15 caltulaiad al tales ranqging kam 15% 1o 332
Jointly-eontrofled entity B 830 861 (2009 0% 1o 33%) on he respective comnany's assnssahin prolis detrtmined i acenrdance with the relevant PRE
Associates (14.788) (29,403} 1aws and raguiations
Loss before 13 97.607) . (165.056) Thers was nn mateaal unpixaned deteded 1ax during the year o at 1he batance shaet sate (2000 N
s belore 1ax 97.6 |
6.
Tax 5 (16.7688) (13.142) Transtoers ta reserves
200 2000
Loss belore minory mierests (114.393) {181,198} ArB 000 RAB 000
Minority interests (3.406) 24,145 Srwtutnry cammon resarve 09 1,767
118 1085 rom ordnary activitins Stawtney public woltan: und a0n 1767
> Other reserva funds 510
attribitable to sharehotders {117,799) {157,053}
1.358 3534
Teansters 1o reserves (6) 1,358 3,534
In ancntdance with tha Company Law nf the PRC and the Company's articles of association, the Company iz
Dividond _— — required to appropnale 10% and 5% 10 10% of s annual stabilary puofit aller tar, as getetmined m accordance with
PRC accounting standaids and ragutations, 1o a s1alalpry common fasorvs (CSCRT) and a s1atulory pubtic wellare
Loss per share - Badic () RMB15.01 cents AMB20.01 cenls fund {"PWFE™), tespaciively Mo aliacation 1o the SCR is raquired a'ter the batanra nf tha Company's SCA 1eactas
50% of iIs ragistered capial
Natns, Tna SCR may only be used 1o oftsel accumuiated losses, 19 expand the praduttion operatians of the Company, ns 1o
1 s of presentation ncrease its pad-up captal

The sesulls al tha year have been prapared in actordance wilh Hong Kong Statements ol Siandard Accounting
Prachice ("SSAPs®}, accounting principles ganarally accapled in Hong Kom and the disclosuta requitemants of the
tinng Kann Campanies Ordinance The msults of the year have bean preparat under (e hugtarinal cost sonvantion,
ercept or the peradic rmeasytnment ot debt and equety investmanis

The PWF ic used fof the collactive wellars ol tha s1al and watkars of tha Company

N wanstar 10 SCR and PWF has tiaen praposed by the board of ditactars because the Company intutrad g 1oss
duting tha yrar

2 f A During ha yrar, the " AgQIegAle Appropnal 10 trsarves deall with i the Group's fmancral slatements
. ° were AMB 1,358,000
Tha following recanity-issusd and tevised SSAPs and tefated ntanealatines are efiective for the tirsh tune for the 7. L h
currant year's financiat slataments + Loss par share
SSAP 9 {Revised) “Evanis after the balante sheet date” Tha calculation of hasic loss et shae is hased on the net Ins< nm ardinary aclivities allrihutabls to sharehalders
SSAP 14 (Revisad) “Leasas” o tor the year of RMB117,799,000 (2000 RMB157.053.000) and the weighied average of 785.000.000 (2000
SSAP 18 (Revised) “Ravenon” 785,000.000) otdinary shares in issue during the year
SSAF 26 “Sagment 1eparting” N o notes
SSAP 28 ~Pravisions, contingant fiabilties an contingent AsSels” o diluted loss pet sharg is presentaa as the Company doas ot have any ditutive polential erdinary shates
gg"g gg “Intangible assets” 8. Comparative amounts
AP “Business combinalions’
SSAP 31 © “impairment of assels® , Cartaio compatatve amounts have been ractassilied 1o conform valh o curent year's prasantation
$8aP 3> -Consatdated linancial statements and accounting for investment thsitarnes”
inmerpretanan 17 “Business combinations-suhzeauent adjustment ol fait vaes and goodwit muaty ~ BUSINESS REVIEW
1epotted” . N o X . N
eomon 13 conining ronuronanc o gooowt 200 v ovan ety 118 SISUDS los ) 2001 naioved t 265 o beretad om (1) ettty g ncrease i e sae
elminaied against/credied 1o resevas e s. . sales ol 2012 seias 1058 2
period of tast year, representing an increase of 36 68%. an additional 120 large-wheeled tractors were
Th chanyns i ascounting RONGAS Suling 1o he ardontion of e sbove SSAPS and Inlarpretaines 40 191 MW o1 uec the 'same period of 138l year, 12prasenting an increase of 42 3%, and 1,592 more 30/40
i K e stater n s 2 far, repres %. A . 3
any sigmiicAnt alinct an the financal staternanls of e Groun medwm-wheeled fraciots were scld over the same period of Iast year, representing an ncrease of
3. Turnover

Turnover reprasents the mvaiced vatue of goods soid, nat of discounts and retarns, and excludes s3ies faxes and
infra-geoup HAnsachnns,

Darmis of the Grann's turnavae and eantiibution In migtitf(inss) from aparating activilies by prmeipal aclivihiag and
PEOAAPMCAL Ar0a of Anaratnes 1o tne venr enced 33 Dacember 2001 A as |

Ceontribution to
profiti{loss) from

758.10%. (2} an increase in the consiruction machinery busmness such as buildozers; (3) a falt in the uni
cosl of iractors over the same period of last year: (4) a retalively large increase in income {rom new
businesses

Durting the reporiing perind. the Company still have not turned around from lgss position hecavse
(1) Agricultural machinery business

Turnover oparating activitios (1) stowgown in income growlh of farmers meant that farmers were 12ss abte and willing 16 makne
2001 2000 2001 2000 purchases. (2) the market facked a new hot product ang the ‘aunch of new products could nol keep
RAIE'NOD RLIEOOD RAB ODO RMBON0 up with the speedy changes sn market demand, {3) new entrants inta the markel have miensifier
By businase angmanis comgetitiocn During the reporting period. the Companry's sales of large-medium trac1os amounied {
Teacior operahinn 1,331 838 (1356671 10 6,108 units. representing a decrease of 36% over the same penod of 1ast vear, of which sales of H
Road machinery oparatinn 432,218 12 793 large crawler fractors was 3.903 unis, representing a decrease of 41 7% over \he same period of
Canstryztion machmnery opotanan 178,571 (2.628) last year, whilst sales of smail-wheaied tractors amounted to 53.428 vnits, represeniing a decrease
Others #0.375 (8.0233 of 14% over the same perod of (he last year
Eliminatinns 1122.178) -
(2) Construction machinery business
1.BR3.824 1997.314 (111,725 150,814y
X Construchon machinery progucls sucn as the 1olling machinery, earthwork machinery and road
Interest. divianad and machinesy of Briltance China Machmery Hoidings Limited ("BCM”) benelited hom an mcrease n
myestment income 48,888 927 = . "
basic infrastructure and as a result, recorded a growth in profit bul still cannol cover the 1055 of 1he
Unatiocated expanses {544) - Group. Duning Ine reporting penod, the Group sold 1,203 road rollers, representing a decrease of
(63.481) (110.887) 4.5% over (he same period of last year (the indusiry fell 10%): 214 bulldozers. teprasenting an

Qver 20% of tha Groups tevenue, resulls, assets and capial expendituies are derived trom onerahom cartied out in
the Prople’s Republic of Ctuna {1hs "PRC") and actnrdingly, no geographical segment s pf

increase of 28 9% over the same perod of last year, 164 pavers, represeniing an increase of 20%
over the penod of las! year, ang 4B mixers, representing an increase of 33% over the same period of
last year.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2001, the Company has successfully raised the qualily ol its praducts, expanded its sales and
increased i1s markel share. Al the same time, the Company has also tocused on the changing needs of
its customers and restructured its product mix positively, and has tried to cater for customers’ nesds
thmugh research and devatopment of new products.

Newly developed agricullural machinery products inciude: 30/40 medium-whealed traclor:
Donglanpghong-1002-1 crawler lractor (with YT4130 engine). a "Mew Century. Mew Hope™ product and
Dongtanghong-SD200 fioating half-axie "Shandiwang" transportation model were inlroduced in small-
wheeted tractor product line: and Dongfanghong X800/804 large wheeted tractor,

Newly developed construction machinary products include: YZ16C, YZ1BC and Y218F road roMers;
WLTLYZ500 mutti-lunctional pavers, HTHB500 lour-crawler cement pavers, end the ABH1500. MODU30,
MODU45, and LIBYS500 and the LIB1500 models of mixing machinery.

The Company wil! continue o insist on its product development strategy: fo respond swillly to the
markel, davelop and manufacture producls which are ble and to the sati ion of clistomers.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT STRATEQY

n 2002, the State will continue 10 widen its "withdrawals and relumns” rafarestatlon wark and speed up
the adjustment and improvement work in the agriculiural sector. This will delinitely aftect the sales of its
large-wheeled crawler traciors. Al the same time, the State will implement such measures as expanding
the channels for farmers 1o Increase their incomas, and increasing investmen! in agricuttural industsy. To
Iincrease larmers’ incomes and (o reduce their liabilities are the prime mission for the Stale to improve
the overall economic environment. This will present an opportunity for the Company to raise the sales of
ils large. medium and small-wheeled tractors, In 2002, the State will continue to imptement the grand
development strategy in Western region and to facilitate the prime construclion projects lika raitway rom
Qinghai to Tibet, nalural gas from West to Easi, and electricily from West to East, etc., and also roads
conslruction projects. These will lead to 8 continuous growth in the demand for consiruction machinery,
which means Ihal there will be a wide opening in the market for products of the Group such as:
butldozers, rollers, mixers, pavers and maintenance machinery.

With China becoming a member of the World Trade Organisation (WTQ}, China's businesses must now
operate in an envitonment where “competition has no walls, markets have no boundaries®. Enlering into
WTO brings aboul enormous effects to China's agricultural industry, which indirectly alfects the
operalion and development of China's agricultural enterprises. Meanwhile. it has created opperiunities
and improved conditions tor the Group's Iracter and construction machinery products 1o enter into
international markets. As such, the Company's operstion and development will lace enormous
challenges in 2002 brought about by domestic and overseas changes. bul these challenges will also
create potential market opportunities lor the Company. New entrants to the marksl has intensified
competiion Qur strategies are as 'ollows:

1} Suengthening ang expanding the agriculiural and consltuction machinery businesses

Agricthural machinery business

In response to the needs of customears and the trend of competition, the Company will enhance the
28HP.90HP products within the 15HP-120HP ranged market. but with an eye still on those products
of less than 25HP and ihose of more than 90HP. At the same time, the Company will pul its elfortin
exploring market for such agricultuwral products as tractors’ accessories. We aim not only 10 supply
the main machinery {of customers, bul also products which can complement with agricultura)
machinery. This will create hreakthrough lor the agricultural industry.

Construction machinery business

The Company will grasp the opponunities provided by the Stale’s improvement in infrastructure and

itls implementation of grand development stralegy of the western region by speeding up the

development ol {he whole range of its construction machinery products such as rolling machinery,

earthwork machinery, paving machinery. micing machinery and maintenance machinery.

Entarging business opporiunities by specialisation in the Company's specialised component plants.

Reslructuring and reorganisalion of the business of its subsidiasies and increasing he refurn of

investment made by the Company.

4} Endeavouring lo international cooperalion. introducing new advanced producls. advanced
lechnology. advanced management and experience from oveaseas.

{MPROVING OPERATIONS AND RAISING EFFICIENCY

The Company is raising efficiency through emphasising management innovation, absorbing new

management ideas and experiences. and by improving operations and efficiency

2
3

The Direclors believe that through adjusiment in product mix, rationalization ol human resourcas and
impiementation of management sirategy. the Company can manage lo avercome dilficulties in adverse
aperaling environment and minimize the exletnal adverse impact on the Company and 1o be able lo
uphold the weakening economics of scalas $o as 10 put the operations of the Company into benign cycle
and {heteby providing more satistaciory invest tretuen 105 S dacs

ANALYSIS OF RESULTS

As al 31 December 2001, the 101d1 wurnover of the Group amounted lo RMB1.863,824.000, representing a
decrease of 6.68% over |he same peniod 1ast year. The consolidated loss alter laxation and minotity
interests amounted 10 AMB 117,729,000, representing a 25% decrease over the same period last year
The inss per share amounted 10 RMB15 01 cents.

Turnnver of the Group fell shightty compared ta last year as income trom boin 1raclors and CONsituction
machnery fell 13 167 and 26 56% respectively as compared wilh the same period 1ast year. However,
lurnover of road machanry ooerafion, the other business segment of the Graup, increase 10.13% from
last year.

in 2001, there was no real improvement in the sliding trend of sales volume of China’s tractor industry.
The main reason for a decrease in sales income of the Company's traclars operation was a refatively
\atge lall (approwmataly 55%) in sales tor its main praduct 70/B0 crawier lraciars Sales of the
Company's small-wheeled ‘ractors also fell (approximately 14%). In lace of savere exiernal marker
conditions, the management of the Company has put much efforls on management siratagies and lurther
reinforced its adjustment 10 the protuct mix and busingss structure. in this way, the Company has met
the markei demands on i1s products In 2001, sates ol 1002/1202 crawler tractors and 30/40 medium-
wheeied lractors. both new models in replace of old product. iose 36.68% and 758 10% in 2001
respactively as compared with the same period last year Although still in preliminary stage. the
adjustment 10 the pIoduct Miv has achieved inmat success and set A basis lor new source o profil
growth

The management has included exlerpal sources of operaling income inte its piolit 1argel accessment
and 1o lacilitate various production units into market for competition and also to seek new source of
economic growth, tn 2001, the Company's income and realised gross profil for ils new businesses rose
2 29 times and 2.28 limes respectively compared with the same period last year, creating the best
results ever since the establishment of the Company. As such, the creation of new businesses has led to
a reduction in l0ss.

COST ANALYSIS

In respect of Cost control. the management stit! implement “Fully Comprehansive, Multi-dimensional and
Stringent Control on Waler. Eleciricity, Heat and Gas” as the framework of target cost management, The
camprehensive cost control system was also established through dimensions on "Reinforcement in

o . phasis on T Qy and ploy of Capital”, and there were signs ol cost and
expenses reduction. n 2001, amids! tall of income, the Company has began g implement such
measures as value engineering. strategic procurement, targat cost management system, cost security
system and resulled in a decrease in variable cost and controllable expenses.

As At 31 Dacembar 2001 the administrative nvpensas of the Company ameunted to RMB134,514.000, a
tise of 7.76% from the same period last year. The main reason for increase in administrative expanses
was consultancy fees paid to management consuitants in 2001. Apart from this, all other expenses undaer
administrative expenses dacreased {rom the same period last year. Based on the principie o! “Top-down
from management and Botiom-up trom unil cost™, the Company managed lo raise efficiency of
procurement tunds utltization by implementing a pubfic tender for all office equipments and comparative
pricing in procuremeant.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2001, the cash and bank batances o! the Group amounted to RMB913.354,000
which had decreased by RMB53.931.000. reprasenting 2 dacline of 5.6% compared with 2000.

As at 31 December 2001, the Group’'s shorl term bank loans amounted 1o RMB257.060,000, an increase
of AMB63.021,000 comparad 10 2000. The Group had no long lerm bank loans. As at 31 December
2001, the gearing ratio was 31.74% (total ligbllities/totat assets x 100%), which showed a slight decrease
when compered 1o that of 32.39% of last year.

As al 31 December 2001, net accounts recetvahle ol the Group amounied to RMB354,333.000.
decreased by AMB129,885,000. represently a decline of 26 8% compared with 2000. The main reason
for 1he fall in the Group's accounls receivable was thal the Company put the management of accounts
receivable and inventory as a priorily ilem throughou! the year and to this end, the Company has set up
a supervisory leam specialize in clearing up inventory and had dehts, and to set clearing guidetines 1o
relevant departments such that the workload was spread over o personnel responsible, As a resull, the
Company elfectively reduced the attributable cost of tunds and enabled the Company's assets 10 remain
in the most favoursble status.

PLEDGE QOF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2001, certain of the Group's buildings and machinery with a carrying value of
approximalely AMB34.881.000 were pledged to banks 1o secure cerfain short term bank fcans granied
to the Group.

Apart Irom this, cestain deposits amounting to approximatety RMB23,302.000 were pledged o banks 10
secure general banking facilities granted by banks o the Group.

INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2001, several subsidiaries owned by the Company have mixed performance in
operations, among which road machinery and building machinery businesses slitl achieved an uprise in
growth, with RMB 14,095,000 and RMB4,739.000 of profit recorded respectively, representing an
increase of 19.5% and 11.5% respectively as compared with the same period lasi year. However,
perlormance of First Tracior Qingjiang Tractor Company Limited, First Tractor Shenyang Tractor
Company Limiled and Yituo (Luoyang) Harvestor Co.. Ltd. was unsatisfactory with a foss in 2001,

During the year. Brittiance China Machinery Holdings Limited, a subsidiary o! tha Company, amared into
an acquisition agrnament with an indepandent third parly. Hong Kong Shuntat Technological Industrial
Company, for the acauisition of the 25% shareholgding of Yituo (Luoyang) Digse! Company Ltd (rom
Hong Kong Shuniat Technological industrial Company for a cash consideration of USD 1.5 million.
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of #s subsidianes puschased, sold o edeamed any of the Company's
listed securtities during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2001, the following interests ol 10% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company were recorded in the register of inierests required to be kepl by the Company pursuant to
Section 168(1) ol the Securilies {Disclosure of Interesis) Ordinance of Chapler 336 of the laws of Hong
Kong ("SD! Ordinance’):

Humber Percontago of

Shareholders . Class of shares totaj sharee
{'000 shares) %)

China First Tractor Group State-owned legal 450.000 57.32

Company Limited person shares
The HKSCC Nominees Limited H shares 329.456 41.97
Save as disciosed above, the directors are not aware that any persons held. directly or indirecily, an
interest of 10% or more in the share capital of Ine Company as required 1o be recorded in the register of
issued shares kept by the Company under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance.
STAFF QUARTER

As all stafl quarters have been retained by the controlling sharehotder. the Company does not have any
slaff quarters to sell 1o its stafi. Pursuant to its existing policy, the stall of the Company shall buy the staff
quarters al their own expenses {including quariers retained by the conlrolling shareholder).
DESIGNATER DEPOSIT AND DEPOSIT DUE

The Company had no deposits with any non-banking financial inslilutions. in June 2001 and September
2001, the Company granted loans of AMB 100 million and RMB2 million 1o its two subsidiaries, namely,
Yituo (Luoyang) Building Machinery Co., Lid. and Guizhou Zhenning Biological Ingustrial Co . Lid.,
respectively. The loans ware granted in form of designated deposils in cerdain commercial banks in the
PRC. Save as aforesaid. the Company had no othet designated depasits All of the Company’s cash
veposits are placed wilh commercial banks in the PRC and are in compliance with the relevanl laws and
reguiations The Company has not experienced any incidents of not being able 10 withdraw bank daposit
when due.

POLICIES ON UNIFIED INCOME TAX

The corporate income tax of the Company 1s subject to 33% tax rale based on its assessable profits.
CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, lhe Company has complied with the Code o! Best Practice as set oul in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock £xchange of Hang Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rutes”) throughout Lhe vear ended 31 December 2001

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Duting the reporting period, nene of the Company, the Directors. Supervisars not senior officers of the
Company had engaged in any matenal lingation or arbitration

ANNOUNCEMENT OF FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE WEB SITE OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company will submit a CD Rom to The Slock Exchange of Hong Kong Limiled (the “Stock
Exchange’) by 30 April 2002 containing all the information required by paragraphs 45(1) to 45(3) (both

paragraphs inclusive) of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules for publication on the website of the Stock
Exchange

By Order of the Board of Direclors
Dong Yong An
Chairman
Luoyang. the PRC
26 April 2002
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

N_OT|CE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 2001 Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of First Tractor Company
Limited (“the Company”} will be held at No.154, Jianshe Road, Luoyang, Henan Province, the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") on Friday, 14 June 2002 at 9:00 a.m. for the purpose of passing
the resolutions as listed below:
1. As ordinary resolutions: -

1. To consider and approve the Report of the Board of Directors of the Company for the year

2001, ) .
2. To consider and approve the Report of the Supervisory Committee for the year 20071;
3. To consider and approve the audited financial report for the year 2001,

4. To consider and approve the dividend distribution proposal for the year ended 31 December
20071, )

5. To consider and approve the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company
for the year ending 31 December 2002 and to authorise the Board of Directors of the
Company to determine the terms for such appointment;

6. To consider and approve the remuneration proposals for the directors and supervisars of the
Company ; and '

7. To consider and approve the resignation of Mr. Hon Fong Ming as the independent non-
executive director of the Company; and

8. To consider any other business.
2. As special resolutions:

1. Subject to the stipulations of Articie 12 of the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, to authorise the Board of Directors of the Company to determine any investment plan
or proposal in respect of other limited companies, joint stock limited companies or other

economic entities or projects, including but not limited to decisions on projects of:

investment, the companies or other economic entities to be invested, the amount, the
investment method (including by way of issuance of the domestic shares or overseas listed
foreign shares) and the time of investment and the execution of the relevant agreements and
other documents; and

2. To authorise the Board of Directors of the Company to declare an interim dividend to the
shareholders of the Company for the haif year ended 30 June 2002.

By order of the Board
Zhang Guo Long
Acting Company Secretary

Luoyang, the PRC, 26 Aprit 2002
Notas: o .

1. The register of. members of the Company's shares will be temporarily ciosed from 15 May 2002 to 14 June 2002
(both days inclusiva} during which no transfer of shares will be registered in order to determine the list of
shareholders for attending the AGM. The last lodgement for share transfer shouid be made on 14 May 2002 at
Hong Kong Registrars Limited by or before 4:00 p.m. The Company's shareholders or theair proxies being
fegiatered betore the close of business on 14 May 2002 are entitled to attend the general meeting by presenting
their identity documents. The address of H share registrar of the Company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited is 2/F.,
Viewood Plaza. No. 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

2. Each sharahoider having the rights to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint ane or more proxies
(whether a shareholder or not) to attend and vote on his behalf. Should more than one proxy be appointed by
one shareholder, such proxy shall only exarcisa his vating rights on a poll.

3. Sharsholders can appoint a proxy by an instrument in writing (i.e. by using the Proxy Form enclosed). The Proxy
B Form shalt be signed by the person appointing the proxy or an attorney authorised Dy such person in writing. if
the Proxy Form i3 signed by an attorney, tha power of attorney or other documents of authorisation shal! be
notarlaily certified. To be valid, the Proxy Form and the natarially cartitied powar of attorney or other documents
of authorisation must be delivered to the above legal addrass of the Company in not less than 24 hours bafore

the time scheduled for the holding of the AGM. :

4. - Shamholders or proxies who intend to attend the AGM are requested to daliver the reply slip for attendance duly
complated and signed to the Company in parson, by post of by facsimile on or before Friday, 24 May 2002.
" §. . Shareholdars or their proxies shall present proofs of their identities upon attending the AGM. Should a proxy be
appointed, the proxy shall aiso present the Proxy Form. B
8. The AGM is expected to last for less than one day. The shareholders and proxies attending the AGM shall be
: responsible for their own travelling and accommodation expenses. '

7. The Company's registered address: ~

No. 154, Jianshe Road, Luoyang, Henan Province, the PRC
Postal code: 471004

Telephone: 86-379-4967038

Facsimile: B6-379-4967438

Email: msc0038@public2.lyptt.ha.cn
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FIRST TRACTOR<00038> - Results Announcement

(Summary)

First Tractor Company Limited announced on 26/4/2002:

(stock code: 38)

Year end date: 31/12/2001
Currency: RMB

Auditors' Report: Neither

Review of Interim Report by: N/A

Turnover
Profit/(Loss) from Operations
Finance cost
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associates
Share of Profit/ (Loss) of

Jointly Controlled Entities
Profit/(Loss) after Tax & MI
% Change over Last Period
EPS/ (LPS) -Basic

-Diluted

Extraordinary (ETD) Cain/ (Loss)
Profit/(Loss) after ETD Items
Final Dividend per H Share
(Specify if with other options)
B/C Dates for Final Dividend
Payable Date
B/C Dates for Annual General Meeting
Other Distribution for Current Period
B/C Dates for Other Distribution

Remark:

LOSS PER SHARE

(Audited)
Current
Period
from 1/1/2001
to 31/12/2001

(t000)
1,863,824

{(63,481)

(20,168)

(14,788)

830
(117,799}
N/A

(RMB15.01lcents)

N/A
(117,799)

NIL

N/a

N/a

{audited)
Last
Corresponding
Period
from 1/1/2000
to 31/12/2000

('000)
1,997,314

(119,887)

(19,627)

(29,403)

861
(157,053)

({RMB20.0lcents)

N/A
(157,053)
NIL

15/5/2002 to 14/6/2002 bdi.

NIL
N/a

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net loss from
ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for the year of

RMB117,799,000 (2000: RMB157,053,000)

and the weighted average of

785,000,000 (2000: 785,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company does not have any

dilutive potential ordinary shares.

For more details, please refer to the press announcement today.
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

FIRST TRACTOR COMPANY LIMITED
E-HRMEAERA

(a joint stock limited company mcorporared in the People s Republic of Clmuz with limited liability)

) ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE RESULTS OF THE .
- EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING TO APPROVE THE
RESIGNATION AND APPOINTMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of First Tractor Company Limited (the “Company”) are pleased
to announce that the extraordinary general meeting ("EGM™) of the Company was held at 9:00
a.m. on Monday on 8th April 2002 at No. 154, Jianshe Road, Luoyang, Henan Province, the People’s

executive directors were consndered and approved at the EGM.

Reference is made to the announcement made by the Company on 21st February 2002 (the
“Announcement”).

RESULTS OF THE EGM

The Board is pleased to announce that the EGM was held on Monday, 8th April 2002 at 9:00 a.m. at
No. 154, Jianshe Road, Luoyang, Henan Province, the PRC and was attended by shareholders of the
Company the (the “Shareholders™) representing 777,665,998 shares of the Company, equivalent to
about 99.1% of the total issued capital of the Company, which was in accordance with the requirements
of the Company Law of the PRC and the articles of associationr of the Company. The EGM was
chaired by the chairman of the Company, Mr. Dong Yong An.

The following ordinary resolutions were passed at the EGM :-

1. The resignation of Mr. Fang Gang and Mr. Chen Li Wei as the ekecutivc directors of the Company
was considered and approved; and

2. The appointment of Mr. Liu Da Gong, Mr. Shao Hax Chen and Mr. Liu Shuang Cheng as the
executive directors of the Company was considered and approved.

The Board takes this opportunity 1o express its warm welcome to Mr. Liu Da Gong, Mr. Shao Hm
Chen and Mr. Liu Shuang Cheng for joining the Board and to thank Mr. Fang Gang and Mr. Chen Li_
Wei for their valuable contributions to the Company during their tenure of services.

"By order of the board of
First Tractor Company Limited
Dong Yong An
Chairman
Luoyang, Henan Province, the PRC, 8th April, 2002

Republic of China (the “PRC™) whereby the resignation and appointment of the Company’s - .
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